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BEFORETHE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD OCT O4~g~

PEOPLEOFTHE STATEOF ILLINOIS, ) inTE OF ILLINOIS
) Pollution Controj Board

Complainant, )
)

vs. )
) PCBNo. 03-191

COMMUNITY LANDFILL COMPANY, INC.,)
an Illinois Corporation,andtheCITY OF )
MORRIS, an Illinois Municipal Corporation,

)
Respondents. )

CITY OF MORRIS’ RESPONSETO COMPLAINANT’S MOTION FOR-SUMMARY
JUDGMENTAND CROSS-MOTIONFORSUMMARY JUDGMENT

NOW COMES the Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, an Illinois Municipal Corporation,

by andthrough its attorneys,H1NSHAW & CULBERTSONLLP, and for its Cross-Motionfor

SummaryJudgment,pursuantto 35 Ill.Adm.Code 101.516, and Responseto Complainant’s

Motion for SummaryJudgment,statesasfollows:

I. THE COMPLAINANT’S MOTION FORSUMMARY JUDGMENTSHOULD BE
DENIED, AND SUMMARY JUDGMENTSHOULD BE AWARDED TO THE
CITY OF MORRIS.

A. THE CITY OF MORRIS IS NOT IN VIOLATION OF ANY LAW OR REGULATION,
AS THE CITY OF MORRIS IS NOT CONDUCTING A WASTE DISPOSAL
OPERATION.

1. TheComplainanthasallegedin its Complaintthat theCity ofMorris hasviolated

Section21(d)(2)of theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (Act), aswell as 35 Ill.Adm.Code

Sections811.700(f)and811.712for allegedlyfailing to provideadequatefinancialassurancefor

closure/post-closureactivitiesat theMorris CommunityLandfill.
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2. Section 21(d)(2)of the Act provides that “[nb person shall * * * Conductany

waste-storage, waste-treatment, or waste-disposal operation * * * in violation of any regulations

or standardsadopted by the Board under this Act. 415 ILCS 5/21(d)(2)(emphasis added).

3. Furthermore, Illinois Administrative Code (Code) Section 811.700(0 provides:

“On or afterApril 9, 1997,no personotherthantheStateof Illinois, its agenciesandinstitutions,

shall conduct any disposal operation at an MSLFunit that requires a permit under subsection (d)

ofSection21.1 of theAct, unlessthat personcomplieswith the financial assurancerequirements

of this part.” 35 Ill.Adm.Code §811.700(f) (emphasis added).

4. As is made clear by the plain language of Section 21(d)(2) of the Act and Section

811.700(f) of the Code, the requirements of those sections only apply if a person “conduct[s]” a

waste disposal operation.

5. It is well-settled that words in a statute must be given their plain and ordinary

meaning. King v. First Capital Financial ServicesCorp., 215 Ill.2d 1, 828 N.E.2d 1155, 1169

(2005).

6. According to Black’s Law Dictionary, the plain and ordinary meaning of

“conduct”is “[t]o manage;direct; lead;havedirection;carryon; regulate;do business.”Black’s

Law Dictionary, 295 (
6

t~~Ed. 1990).

7. In this case, there is no question that the City of Moths does not “conduct” a

waste disposal operation, as it is not managing, leading, directing, carrying on, regulating or

doing business as a waste disposal facility. Rather, the City of Morris is merely the owner of/fee

title holder to property that has been used for waste disposal activities for Community Landfill

Company (CLC).

2
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8. CommunityLandfill Company(CLC), not the City of Moths, is the entity that

“conducts” the waste disposal operations at Moths Community Landfill. In fact, CLC is

specifically listed as theoperatorof theMoths CommunityLandfill in thepermitsissuedby the

IEPA, and, assuch,hasbeenexpresslyrecognizedby IEPA as thepartywho is conductingwaste

disposal operations at the facility in question. Moreover, in his recent deposition testimony,

Brian White (theprincipalAffiant relied uponby theStateof Illinois in supportof its Motion for

SummaryJudgment)specifically testified that: 1) permits issued by IEPA draw a distinction

betweenthe ownerand operator,2) theCity of Moths hasneverbeen the permitted operator of

the landfill and 3) theCity is not identified astheoperatoron thepermits for thesite in question.

Seedepositionof Brian White, pgs. 33-36 attachedheretoas Exhibit B. Moreover, White

specifically testified that the owner of a facility does not necessarily have to post closure/post

closure financial assurance.SeeId., pages37-38. See Complainant’s Exhibits A and B.

9. Furthermore,CLC hasadmittedthat, as the operatorof the facility, it “manages”

(i.e. conducts) the day-to-day waste disposal operations of the facility. See CLCAnswer, par. 5;

see also Black’s Law Dictionary, 295,

10. Moreover, Mark Retzlaff, an employee of the Illinois Environmental Protection

Agency, and one of the State’sown Affiants, statedunderoath that CLC operatesthe Morris

Community Landfill, and that CLC’s employees manage it. SeeComplaint’sExhibit I, paras.3,

7.

11. Basedon all of theevidencein this case,it is clearthat theCity of Morris does

not “conduct” a waste disposal operation, and, therefore, is not required to comply with Section

21(d)(2) of the Act or Section 811.700(f) of the Code.

3
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12. The Complainant attempts to present evidence of “activities” that the City of

Moths has engaged in with respect to the Moths Community Landfill, such as applying for a

bond, participating in permit appeals and receiving royalties for waste dumped at the landfill, in

an attempt to establish that the City of Morris is actively conducting a waste disposal operation.

However, none of these “activities” establish that the City of Moths “conducts” a waste disposal

operation. Rather,these“activities” merelyreflect the City of Moths’ interestin the landfill as

fee title ownerof the landupon which the facility is located andoperated.

Moreover, the fact that the City does not “conduct” waste handling, waste management

or waste disposal activities as defined by Section 21(d)(2) of the Act or Section 811.700(1) is

more than adequately pointed out by one of the State’s own Affiants, Helen Robinson.

Ms. Robinson’sAffidavit in supportof theState’sMotion for SummaryJudgment(which

is attached as Exhibit H to that Motion) is authored as proof that the Annual Report and

certification of Solid Waste Landfill Capacity for the Morris Community Landfill facility was

not filed for theyears2003 and2004.

As noted by Ms. Robinson in her Affidavit (and as further noted by the State in the text

of its Motion), in her capacityas ProjectManagerin the WasteReductionand Compliance

Sectionof the IEPA Bureauof Land, shewas directly responsible for writing the annual report

on solid waste management activities which take place within the State of Illinois (generally

referred to as the Non-Hazardous Solid Waste Management Landfill Capacity in Illinois Animal

Report).

As also alluded to both in Ms. Robinson’sAffidavit and the text of the State’s Motion,

that report outlines solid waste management and disposal activity which occurs each year within

theStateof Illinois. Interestingly enough, Ms. Robinson also acknowledges she is familiar with
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theMothsCommunityLandfill. Furthermore,notwithstandingthefact that sheis responsible(at

leastin part) for: (1) monitoring and reportingon the statusof landfill activity in the Stateof

Illinois, and (2) by her own sworn admission,is familiar with the Morris CommunityLandfill

facility, in her Affidavit, Ms. Robinsondoes~ allegethat the City of Moths is requiredto

submitsuchannualcertifications. Rather,Ms. Robinsonmerelyallegesthat: “CLC is requiredto

submit a certificationentitled “Solid WasteLandfill CapacityCertification (“Certification”) on

an annualbasis” (seeparagraph6 of Exhibit H attachedto State’sMotion).

The City believesthat Ms. Robinson’slackof referenceto any similar obligationon the

part of the City is both deliberateand telling. The City will submits that the reasonMs.

Robinsonhasfailed to include any referenceto the City in the Affidavit shehas executedin

supportof theState’sMotion for SummaryJudgmentis becausesheis full well awareofthe fact

that the City does not “conduct” any waste handling, wastemanagementor waste disposal

activities at the Morris CommunityLandfill site and, as such,is not responsiblefor anyof the

reportingrequirementssheallegesin herAffidavit that CLC hasfailed to submit.

The substanceof otherAffidavits offered by representativesof IEPA in supportof the

State’sMotion areequallyastelling. For example,asidefrom variousreferenceato the fact that

the City of Morris is listed as the owneron various applicationsand reports that havebeen

submittedand permits that have beenissuedfor the Moths Community Landfill in the past,

Brian White doesnot provide any definitive evidencethat the City actually “conducts” waste

disposaloperationsat theSiteasspecificallyrequiredby Section21(d)(2)of theAct anftSection

811.700(1). Moreover, in addition to the lack of specific referenceto any facts that would

conclusively establish that the City “conducts” waste disposal operations at the Morris

Community Landfill, Brian White’s Affidavit only includes several general, conclusory
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statementsto theeffect that the City is responsiblefor obtainingclosure/postclosurefinancial

assurancefor the landfill in question. However,asnotedabove,in his subsequentdeposition,

Brian White testifiedthat to his knowledge,theCity hasneveroperatedthefacility in question.

Moreover, theAffidavit of Mark Retzlaff(againone of the State’sown Affiants) asserts

that CommunityLandfill Companyoperatesthelandfill facility in question.Nothing is included

within Mr. Rctzlaff’s Affidavit which allegesthat theCity is involved in the activeoperationof

or otherwise “conducts” waste disposal operations at the facility.

Likewise, the Affidavit of Cristina Roque is devoid any facts whatsoever which would

demonstrate or establish that the City “conducts” waste disposal operations at the landfill facility

in question. In fact, none of the Affidavits submitted by IEPA representatives include any

factual basis whatsoever which establishes that the City of Moths conducts waste disposal

operations at the facility in question, all as specifically required by Section 5-21(d)(2) of the Act,

as well as specifically required by Section 811.700(1). In fact, a close reading of these Affidavits

reveals that the State’s Affiants step all the way around and deliberately avoid any reference to

the specific mannerand form in which theCity of Moths allegedly “conducts” waste disposal

operationsat the landfill; the seminal,touchstonebasic requirementthat mustbe met before a

party is liablefor posting of closure/post closure financial assurance under Illinois law.

13. The Complainant’s assertion that the City of Moths is required to comply with

Section21(d)(2) ofthe Act and Sections 811.700(1) of the Code merely because it is an owner of

the property on which the landfill is located would require a wholesalere-writing of those

sections. In effect, the Complainant is suggesting that the word “conduct” contained in Section

21 (d)(2) of the Act and Section 811.700(f) of the Code be replaced with the word “own.”

6
70458497v2 806289



14. Clearly, it wasnot the intentionof theLegislaturefor theSection21(d)(2)of the

Act or its regulations to apply to entities that passively own land upon which waste disposal

operations are (or have been) conducted, as the plain language of these provisions requires that

an entity must actively “conduct” a wastedisposal operationin order for those laws and

regulations to apply.

In keeping with the Act’s definitions of “owner” and “operator,” which make clear that it

is operators who conduct waste disposal operations, this Board has held that where a waste

disposaloperationis ownedandoperatedby separateentities,it is theoperatorwofsuc4rsites,not

the owners, who are responsible for posting of the requisite financial assurance.

As noted by this Board in People v. Wayne Berger and Berger Waste

Management,PCB94-373(May6, 1999),1999WL 304583:

[T]he regulations and statutes at issue [in an action for failure to maintain
financial assurance pursuant to Section 21(d)] either specifically apply to
operators,or prohibit personsfrom “conduct[ing] a waste disposaloperation”
unlesscertain actionsare taken.[citationomitted]. An “operator” is definedin 35
Ill.Adm.Code 807.104 as “[a] person who conducts a waste disposal operation.”

In Berger, the ownerof a landfill site, WayneBerger,transferredtitle to the landfill to

Berger Waste Management (“BWM”), a corporation he had formed for that express purpose. Id.

Thereafter, Berger acted as the site’s operator, continuing to conduct operation&onmday-io-day

basis, while BWMwas the site’s owner. Berger and BWMwere eventually charged with a

numberof violations with respectto the site, including a failure to provide the statutorily

required financial assurance for closure and post-closure care.

BMWargued that it was not liable under 21(d), because it was merely the owner, and

therefore was not the party with the obligation to provide financial assurance. The hearing officer

disagreed, and held both operator and owner (Berger and BWM)liable for all violations charged,

including the failure to provide financial assurance.

7
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On appeal, however, the Illinois Pollution Control Board rejected the hearing officer’s

finding with respect to Count I (the financial assurance violation), holding that “Berger was the

operator of the landfill, and BWMdid not become the operator when it received title to the

property. Consequently, BWM is not liable for the violations alleged in count I.” Id. at *8. Thus

the PCB found that where there is an active operator of the site, it is only the operator, not the

uninvolved owner, who is liable for failure to provide the required financial assurance.

15. It is not the role of this Board to re-write legislation, as the Complainant would

like this Boardto do; rather,this Boardmustsimply interpretthe languageas it exists_imSection

21(d)(2). SeeKing, 828 N.E.2d at 1169, citing In re Marriage ofBeyer,324 Ill.App.3d 305,

309-10,753 N.E.2d 1032 (2001) (explainingthat “a court may not supply omissions, remedy

defects, annex new provisions, substitute different provisions, add exceptions, limitations, or

conditions, or otherwisechangethe law so as to departfrom the plain meaningof language

employedin thestatute”).

16. In summary,andasset forth above,theplain languageof Section21 (d)(2) of the

Act andSection 811.700(f) of the Code clearly does not require the City of Moths, who does not

“conduct” awastedisposaloperation,to satisfytherequirementsofthosesections.

WHEREFORE,Respondent, CITY OF MORRIS, respectfully requests that this Board

grant this Motion for Summary Judgment, as there is no genuine issue of material fact that CITY

OF MORRIS doesnot conducta waste disposaloperationand, therefore,is not in violation of

Section21(d)(2)of theAct or Section811.700(f)of theCode.

B. THE CITY OF MORRIS HAS COMPLIED WITH 35 ILL.ADM.CODE SECTIONS
811.706 AND 811.717.

17. Section 811.706 of Title 35(a) of the Illinois Administrative Code provides:
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Theowneror operatorofa wastedisposalsitemayutilize ~ ofthemechanisms
listed in subsections (a)(1) through (a)(10) to provide financial assurancefor
closure and post closure care, and for corrective action at an MSWLFunit. * * *

The mechanisms are as follows:

1) A trust fund (seeSection811.710);

2) A surety bond guaranteeing payment (see Section 811.711);

3) A suretybondguaranteeingperformance(seeSection811.712);

4) A letter of credit (see Section 811.713);

5) Closureinsurance(seeSection811.714);

6) Self-insurance (see Section 811.715);

7) Local government financial test (see Section 811.716);

8) Local governmentguarantee(seeSection811.717);

9) Corporatefinancialtest(seeSection811.719);or

10) Corporateguarantee(seeSection811.720).

35 Ill.Adm.Code811.706(a)(emphasisadded).

18. Despitethe fact that Section 811.706(a)providesmany mechanismsto provide

financial assurance, interestingly enough, the Complainant cites to only one such mechanism in

its Motion, Section 811.712, and alleges that the City of Moths has failed to provide financial

assurance in compliance with that one particular mechanism.

19. However, the Complainantfails to acknowledgethat the City of Moths can and

would provide financial assurancein compliance with the mechanismset forth in Section

811.717 (the local government guarantee) if required by law to do so.

20. Section 811.717 provides:

An owner or operatormay demonstratefinancial assurancefor closure,post-
closure, and corrective action, as required by Section 21.1(a) of the Act and
811 .Subpart G, by obtaining a written guarantee provided by a unit of local
government. The guarantor shall meet the requirements of the local govermnent
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financial test in Section 811.716, and shall comply with the terms of a written
guarantee.

a) Termsofthewritten guarantee.Theguaranteemustbe effective
before the initial receipt of waste or before November 27, 1997,
whichever is later, in the case of closure or post-closure care, or no
laterthan 120 daysafterthecorrectiveactionremedyhasbeen
selected in accordance with the requirements of Sections
811.319(d)and 811.325. The guarantee must provide that:

1) If theowneroroperatorfails to performclosure,post-
closure care or corrective action of a facility covered by the
guarantee, the guarantor must:

A) Perform,~ payathird partyto perform,closure,
post-closure care, or corrective action as required;
or

B) Establishafully fundedtrust fund,asspecifiedin
Section811.710,in thenameof theowneror
operator.

35 Ill.Adm.Codc 811.717(a)(1) (emphasisadded).

21. As is clearlysetforth in Section811.71 7(a)(1), a local governmentguarantormay

itselfperformor payathird partyto perform. A local governmentis not requiredto do both.

22. In fact, Blake Haths,an IEPA employee who was a member of the Financial

AssuranceUnit of the Solid WasteSection for manyyears and was personallyresponsiblefor

determining if the Moths Community Landfill had adequate financial assurance, testified that a

local unit of governmentmay “perform or pay” pursuant to Section 8l1.717(a)(1). See

DepositionofBlakeHarris,p. 53, attachedheretoasExhibit A (emphasis added).

23. According to Mr. Haths, a unit of local government is not required to hire a third

partyto perform. Seeid.

24. If a local unit of government files a guarantee that it will perform if the operator

fails to do so, such a guarantee is sufficient financial assurance, and nothing more is required.

See Exhibit A, pp. 54, 56-57, 60-61, 67, 73. There is no requirementthat the local unit of
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government also post a bond or some other alternate financial assurance, as the local government

guarantee itself is adequate. See Exhibit A, p. 54, 56-57, 60-6 1, 67.

25. In fact, to the contrary, the plain language contained in Section 811 .717(a)(1)

expressly allows a “unit of local government” to provide a written guarantee to perform closure

and post-closure care. Sec 35 ILCS 811.717. (Emphasis added).

26. Based on the foregoing, it is clear that the City of Moths could comply with

Section 811.706 through the posting of local governmentguaranteeto perform closure/post

closureactivities asthey arise,a mechanismthat is specificallyallowedby Section811.706,and

fully setforth in Section811.717if requiredby law to do so.

WHEREFORE,Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfully requests that this Board

grantthis Motion for SummaryJudgment,asthereis no genuineissueof material factthat CITY

OF MORRIS can and will comply with all applicable rules and regulations by providing

financial assurance in the form a local government guarantee.

C. COLLATERAL ESTOPPELDOES NOT APPLY BECAUSENEITHER THIS BOARD
NOR ANY COURTHAS EVERRULEDTHATTHECITY OF MORRISFAILED TO
COMPLYWITH ANY REGULATIONOTHERTHANSECTION811.712.

27. The Complainant vaguely and generally contends that collateral estoppel should

apply in this casebecause“noncompliancewith 811.712 haspreviouslybeendecided.” See

Complainant’s Motion, p. 10.

28. The City of Morris agreesthat the issue of the City’s compliancewith Section

811.712 has been previously decided by this Board and the Illinois Appellate Court forthe Third

District. However, noncompliance with Section 811.712 is not the issue now presented in this

case. Rather,theissuenow to be determinedin this caseis whethertheCity of Morris can post

financial assurance by using ~ of the mechanisms specified in Section 811.706, not just some

form of suretybondsthat meettherequirementsofSection811.712.
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29. While this Board and the Third District Court held that the surety bonds obtained

by the City of Morris did not comply with Section811.712,neitherthis Boardnorany Court has

ever held that the City of Morris could not use anothermechanismspecifically allowed by

Section 811.706 to fulfill its financial assuranceobligations. In fact, this Board and the

AppellateCourt focusedexclusivelyon Section 811.712,becauseperformancebondswere the

financial instrument directly in issue in that case. See Complainant’s Exhibits E and F.

30. IEPA also focusedexclusivelyon Section811.712asif it werethe solemethodof

demonstrating financial assurance. Mr. Haths specifically testified that he only considered

whethertheCity of Moths fulfilled its financial assuranceobligationsby examiningthe surety

bondsthat it obtained, and merely found that those bonds violated Sections 811.700(f)and

811.712. SeeExhibit A, pp. 37-38. However,Mr. HarrisneveradvisedtheCity of Mothsthat it

could have fulfilled its financial assuranceobligations by providing a local government

guarantee. Exhibit A, p. 69.

31. As even conceded by the Complainant in its Motion for Summary Judgment,

collateral estoppel only applies where: 1) the issue decided in the prior adjudication is identical

with the one presented in the instant matter; 2) there was a final judgment on the merits in the

prior adjudication;and 3) the party againstwhom estoppelis assertedwasapartyor a party in

privity with a party to the prior adjudication. People v. CommunityLandfill Co., PCB 03-191,

slip op. at4-5 (Oct. 16, 2003),citing ESGWatts, Inc. v. IEPA, PCB 96-191 and 97-210,slip op.

at 2-3 (July 23, 1998) (emphasis added).

32. In this case, the first element of collateral estoppel cannot be met because the

issue presented here is not identical to the issue presented in the cases of CommunityLandfill

Company v. Illinois EnvironmentalProtection Agency, PCB 01-170 (Dec. 6, 2001) and
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CommunityLandfill Companyv. Pollution ControlBoard, 331 lll.App.3d 1056,772 N.E.2d231

(3d Dist. 2002).

33. In those caseneither, this Board and the Illinois Appellate Court examined

whether the City of Moths met or could meet its financial assurance obligations under Section

811.717, which is the issue directly presented in this case. Rather, the Board and Court limited

their inquiries to whether or not the surety bond previously obtained by theRespondentsmetthe

requirementsof Section811.712. SeeComplainant’sExhibits E andF.

34. Becausethe issue previously decidedby this Board and Appellate Court was

clearly distinct from the issues presented in this case, collateral estoppel does not apply.

WHEREFORE, Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfullyrequeststhat this Board

grant this Motion for SummaryJudgment,as there is no genuineissue of material fact that

collateralestoppeldoesnot precludeCITY OF MORRIS from establishingthat it can andwill

complywith Section811.706.

D. CITY OF MORRIS HAS NOT WILLFULLY, KNOWINGLY OR REPEATEDLY
VIOLATED ANY LAW OR REGULATION.

1) City of Morris is not in violation of Section811.700(f).

35. The Complainantallegesthat theCity of Morris hasviolated Section 811.700(f)

of the Board regulationsby failing to haveadequate,compliant financial assurancefor closure

and post-closurecare of parcels A & B of the Moths Community Landfill, and further

gratuitouslyallegesthat this fact is “indisputable.”

36. First, and mostimportantly, the City of Moths cannot,asa matter of law, be in

violation of Section811.700(f),because,as notedabove,that Sectiononly appliesto entitiesthat

“conduct any disposaloperation.” 35 Ill.Adm.Code 811.700(f). As specifically andthoroughly
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explainedin Part A above,the City of Morris doesnot“conduct” awastedisposaloperationbut,

rather,simplyownspropertyuponwhich a wastedisposalfacility is located.

37. Therefore, Section 811.700(f) is inapplicable to the City of Moths.

38. Moreover, the City of Morris has indicatedthat if requiredto post closure/post

closure financial assurance it would in fact comply with Section 811.706 (and, likewise,

811.700(f)) by posting a local government guarantee to “perform” leachate collection and

treatment activities for the landfill at its local POTWat no cost to the State, to unconditionally

reserve that capacity needed for 100 years to address this need, and to implement other

closure/postclosuremeasuresastheneedarisesoverthe applicableclosure/postclosureperiod.

39. While the City of Morris has not yet filed the requisite form for the local

government guarantee, it has not done so only because: 1) it does not believe it is obligated by

law to do so, and 2) moreover, IEPA has advised the City that the form would not be accepted as

adequate financial assurance. However, as repeatedly explained by IEPA’s employee (whose

specific responsibility it was to determine the adequacy of financial assurance), the local

governnent guarantee alone would constitute adequate assurance. See Exhibit A, pp. pp. 54, 56-

57, 60-61, 67, 73.

40. Therefore, even if Section 811.700(f) did apply to the City of Moths, which it

clearlydoesnot, theCity of Morris hascompliedwith that Section.

WHEREFORE,Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfullyrequeststhat this Board

grantthis Motion for SummaryJudgment,asthereis no genuineissueofmaterial fact that CITY

OF MORRIS hasnot violatedSection811.700(f)of Title 35 oftheIllinois AdministrativeCode.

2) City of Morris is not in violation of Section21(d)(2)of theAct.
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41. The Complainantassertsthat City of Moths hasviolated Section21(d)(2) of the

Act by violating Sections811.712and 811.700(f).

42. However,as explainedin Part C above,Section811.712is now irrelevant,as that

Section focuses only on one specific mechanism allowed to be used to post financial assurance.

However,the City of Morris is ableto provide financialassurancethroughothermechanisms-as

well (specifically, a local governmentguarantee),which the City of Mothsis willing and able to

provide. Therefore,compliancewith Section811.712is not at issue.

43. Furthermore,as set forth above, the City of Moths cannotbe in violation of

Section 811.700(f), as that Section only applies to entities that “conduct any disposal operation,”

andtheCity ofMorris doesnot, asamatterof law, “conduct any disposal operation.”

44. Finally, the City of Moths cannot be in violation of Section 21(d)(2) of the Act

because, like Section 811.700(f), Section 21(d)(2) only appliesto entities that “conduct any

waste-storage,waste-treatment,or waste-disposaloperations.” 415 ILCS 5/21(d)(2). Because

the City of Moths does not “conduct any waste-storage,waste-treatment,or waste-disposal

operations,”but merely owns property on which a waste disposal facility is located, the City of

Moths is not in violation of Section2l(d)(2).

WHEREFORE,Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfully requests that this Board

grantthis Motion for SummaryJudgment,as thereis no genuineissueof material fact thatCITY

OFMORRIS hasnotviolated Section21(d)(2)of theAct.

3) City of Morris’ AllegedViolations WerenotWillful, Knowing or Repeated.

45. As set forth above,the City of Moths has not violated any applicable laws or

regulations;therefore, it certainly cannot be found to havedone so willfully, knowingly or

repeatedly.
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46. Nevertheless,evenif this Board finds that the City of Moths hasviolatedsome

law or regulation, any such violation would not have been willful, knowing or repeated.

47. BecausetheCity of Moths is awarethat its performancebondshavebeenfound

to be inadequatefinancial assuranceby this Board and the AppellateCourt, the City of Moths

has attempted to provide compliant financial assurance for closure and post-closure care of the

facility in the form of a local government guarantee. However, the City of Morris’ attempts to

do sohavebeenthwartedby IEPA’s incorrectinterpretationof Section811.717.

48. Becausethe City of Moths is attemptingto comply with all applicablelaws and

regulations,any allegedviolations shouldnotbe consideredwillful, knowing or repeated.

WHEREFORE,Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfully requeststhat this Board

grantthis Motion for SummaryJudgment,asthereis no genuineissueofmaterial fact that CITY

OF MORRIS has not willfully, knowingly and repeatedlyviolated any applicable law or

regulation.

II. THE RELIEF REQUESTEDBY THE COMPLAINANT SHOULD BE DENIED,
AND SUMMARY JUDGMENT SHOULD BE GRANTED FOR CITY OF
MORRIS.

49. As set forth in Section101.516of the Board ProceduralRules,a party is entitled

to summaryjudgment“[i]f therecord,includingpleadings,depositionsand admissionson file,

together with any affidavits, show that there is no genuine issue of material fact.” 35

Ill.Adm.Code 101.516.

50. In this case,all of the evidenceshowsthat theCity of Morris hasnot violatedany

law or regulationand, therefore,is entitled to summaryjudgment. Therefore,this Boardshould

grantsummary judgmentin favor of theCity of Moths.

16
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WHEREFORE,Respondent,CITY OF MORRIS, respectfullyrequeststhat this Board

grantits Motion for SummaryJudgmentagainsttheComplainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OF

ILLINOIS, and take such other action as the Board believes to be appropriate and just.

Dated: /b /3 /oc Respectfully Submitted,

City of Morris

By: Hinshaw

HINSHAW AND CULBERTSONLLP
100 ParkAvenue
P.O. Box 1389
Rockford, IL 61105-1389
815-490-4900

CharlesF. Helsten
One of Attorneys

This document utilized 100% recycledpaper products



AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

The undersigned,pursuantto the provisions of Section 1-109 of the Illinois Code of Civil
Procedure,herebyunderpenaltyof peijury underthe lawsof the United Statesof America, certifiesthat
on October3,2005,sheserveda copy ofthe foregoingupon:

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL
Mr. Christopher Grant

AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureau

188W. Randolph St., 20th Fl.
Chicago,IL 60601

ScottBelt
ScottBelt andAssociates,PC
105 E. Main Street,Suite206

Morris, IL 60450

VIA OVERNIGHTMAIL
ClarrisaGrayson

Mark LaRose
LaRose& Bosco,Ltd.

200 N. LaSalleStreet,Suite2810
Chicago,IL 60601

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL
Ms. Dorothy Gunn,Clerk
Pollution Control Board

100 W. Randolph, Suite 11-500
Chicago, IL 60601

VIA OVERNIGHTMAIL
BradleyHalloran
Hearing Officer

Pollution Control Board
100 W. Randolph, Suite 11

Chicago, IL 60601

By depositing a copy thereof, enclosed in an envelope in the United States Mail at Rockford, Illinois,
proper postage prepaid, before the hour of 5:00 P.M., addressed as above.

HINSHAW & CULBERTSON
100 ParkAvenue
P.O.Box 1389
Rockford, IL 61105-1389
(815) 490-4900
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COMMUNITY LANDFILL COMPANY, INC.

an Illinois corporation, and the
CITY OF MORRIS. an I].linoie

municipal corporation,

Respondents

STATE OF ILtINOIS
Office of the Attorney General

E n’siro nmental Bureau
188 West Randolph Street

20th Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60601

BY: ~. CHRISTOPHER .3. GRANT

P.ssis tant Attorney General

A.ppearing on behalf of the

Complainant

LAROSE & BOSCO, LTD.

Attorneys at Law

200 North I..aSalle Street

Suite 2010
Chicago, Illinois 60601

BY: HS. CLARISSA CUTLER GRAYSON
A,ppearing on behalf of the

Respondent, Community Landfill
Company. Inc.

HINSHAW £ CULBERTSON, LLP

Attorneys at Law
100 park Atrenue
P.O. Box 1309
Rockford, Illinois 61105

my: }~. RICHARD S PORTER
A.ppearing on behalf of the
aespondent, the City of Morris

Exanination by Hr. Porter
Examination by Ms. Graysori

Examination by Mr. Grant
Re—Examination by Hr. Porter . -

Re—Examination by Mr. Grayson
Re—Examination by Mr. Grant -. . -

EXHIBITS

Slake Harris Exhibit Number i . . -

(Exhibit retained by Mr. Porter)

8—25-04BLAKE OLIN HARRIS

1

2 BEFORE THE

ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

3

4

PEOPLE OF TI-XE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
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Discov.ery deposition of BLAKE OLIN HARRIS

taken at the instance of the Respondent, the

City of Morris. on the 25th day of August,
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BLAKE OLIN HARRIS
calledasa witnessherein,for discovery
purposes,at theinstanceof theRespondent,
havingbeenfirst duly swornon his oath,was
examinedandtestifiedasfollows, to-wit:

EXAMINATION BY
MR. PORTER:

Q. Good morning. Canyoustateyour
namefor therecord,please.

A. BlakeOlin Harris.
Q. Let therecordreflect this is the

deposition of Blake Olin Harris taken pursuant
to all of theapplicablerulesof theIllinois
Code of Civil Procedure and the Illinois
PollutionControlBoard.

Mr. Harris,canyougive meyourdateof
birth?

A. 11-20-69.
Qt What was the - - what is youraddress?
A. 2129 SouthLincoln Avenue,

Springfield,Illinois.
Q. How long haveyou lived there?
A. Threeandahalf years.
Q. How long haveyou lived in



5 7

Springfield?
A. Most ofmy life, 32 years.
Q. Whatwasthelast yearof education

that you completed?
A. I got myBachelor’sin ‘92. I have

takenMaster’slevel classesup through,I
think it was‘97.

Q. Did you acquireanydegreeotherthan
a Bachelor’sDegree?

A. No.
Q. Wheredidyou getyourBachelor’s

Degreefrom?
A. Illinois College,Jacksonville.
Q. Whatwasthat degree?
A. Businessadministration.
Q. You saidyouhavetakenMaster’s

level classessinceor up to 1997. Did I hear
that correctly?

A. Yes.
Q Whatclassesdid you take?
A. Well, I startedon environmental

studiesdegree,Master’sat S.I.U.
Edwardsville,did notcompletethat. I have
takenotherenvironmentalMaster’sclassesat

the University of Illinois Springfieldsince
then.

Q. Are you still taking - - strike that.
You haven’thadanyclassessince1997

though,is thatright?
A. No.
Q. And sohow far areyou from acquiring

aMastersDegree,if you know?
A. Quite abit. I don’t know.
Q. You haveno intentionofacquiringa

Master’sDegreeat this time?
A. Probablynot.
Q. Otherthanyourbusiness

administrationBachelor’s,anyothersecondary
educationof any type?

A. Like seminars,thatkind of stuff?
Q. Anything.
A. Okay,financialanalysisseminar

aboutayearago.
Q. Whatis your presentoccupation?
A. I work for the FinancialAssistance

InfrastructureSectionasan accountant.We
do low interestloansfor communitiesdoing
watertreatmentimprovementor water

6

distribution.
Q. Do you havea title?
A. Accountantis the title.
Q. You workat theIllinois

EnvironmentalProtectionAgency,correct?
A. Yes.

MR. GRANT: Justto clarify you
might want to, you work for the Bureauof
Waternow.

A. Bureauof Water,yes.
Q. How longhaveyou workedfor the

Bureauof Water?
A. Eight months.
Q. Prior to thatwhatwasyourjob at

the IEPA -- strikethat.
How longhaveyoubeenat the IEPA?
A. Since‘93.
Q. Whendid yougraduatefrom college,

‘92?
A. ‘92.
Q. So,wasthis your first job out of

college?
A. I had aninternshipwith Bureauof

Waterat the IEPA prior tothat.

Q. Thenafteryour internshipyou then
beganyour employmentat the IEPA, andwhat
was that?

A. I workedfor Bureauof Air doing
vehicle emissions,basicallythe office work,
the office componentof the emissiontests
like up in the Rockfordarea,thoseareas.We
reviewedthe resultsthatwould comein from
emissionstests. I did that for two months,
andthenstartedworking in the Leaking
UndergroundStorageTankSectionasaproject
manager.

Q. How longdidyou workasaproject
managerfor the LUST Section?

A. Little overtwo years,andthen I
starteddoing thetechnicalbilling reviews
for the AccountingSectionthatdid the
reimbursementfor LUST claims,like if you
hadareleaseat an undergroundstoragetank
site.

Q You saidyoudid the technical
billing reviews. Whendid you startdoing
that for the LUST Section?

A. I starteddoing thatin Septemberof
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9 11
1 ‘951 think it was.
2 Q. Whenyou saytechnicalbilling
3 reviews,wereyou checkingto besurethat
4 thebills that entitiesweresubmittingto
S the LUST fundwereaccurate?Whatdidyour
6 jobentail in technicalbilling reviews?
7 A, It wasbasicallywhat aproject
a managercoulddo, I understoodthe technical
9 sidefrom beinga projectmanager,andyou

10 would reviewthe reportsthat weresubmitted,
11 andtotally separatefrom thatyou would
12 receiveclaimsin the AccountingUnit, andI
13 wascomparingwhatwasactuallyreportedas
14 beingdoneon the site to whatwasbeing
15 billed from the LUST fund. So,you would
16 determineif theywerelegitimatecosts,if
17 theywerebilling 200 hoursfor aone page
18 report sort of thing.
19 Q. You saidif theywerebilling, the
20 projectmanagers?
21 A. No, theybeing theconsultingfirm
22 who did the work for theowneroperatorsof
23 the stations.
24 Q. So,youstartedthat in ‘95?

A. Yes.
Q And you continuedthat for two years?
A. No. I starteddoingthe technical

bill reviewsfor the AccountingSectionfrom
‘95 up throughFebruaryof ‘99.

Q. Okay. So, throughFebruaryof ‘99 am
I correctin indicatingyou hadabsolutelyno
experiencewith financialassurancesfor solid
wastefacilities?

A, Correct,
Q. Whatdid youdo after‘99?
A. After Februaryof ‘99 I started

working doingthe financialassurance.
Q. Whatdepartmentwereyouwith at that

time?
A. It wascalledthe Solid Waste

Section.
Q. Solid WasteSectionof what?
A. Of the Bureauof Land.
Q. Who wasyourimmediatesupervisor?
A. At the time it wasHopeWright.
Q. Whatwashertitle?
A. I don’t know Hope’stitle. I am not

surewhathertitle was.

10

Q. Whatwasyourtitle in theSolid
WasteSectionasof Februaryof ‘99?

A. I think it wascalledaccountant
trainee. I did that for six monthsof
probation,andthenwentinto accountantafter
that.

Q. Now, youarenota certifiedpublic
accountant,correct?

A. No.
Q. So,in thetermsof the IEPA what

doesaccountantmean?
A, It seemsto varywidely dependingon

yourjob. It alwaysinvolvesa financial
component.

Q. Okay. How manyaccountantsare there
underthe Bureauof Land, do you know?

A. I don’t know.
Q. What’syourbestestimate?
A. Pardon.
Q. What’syourbestestimate?
A. BestestimateI would saythereis

probably20,
Q. And how longwereyou accountant

traineeor accountantfor theBureauof Land?

A. From February‘99 throughJanuaryof
2004.

Q. Your title for thatentiretime was
eitheraccountanttraineeoraccountant,
correct?

Correct.
And theninJanuaryof 2004you moved
the Bureauof Water,is that right?
Yes.

12

A.

Qu

onto
A.
Q. Did you receiveany special

training - - strike that.
You havehadsomerole in regardto the

CommunityLandfill Company,Incorporatedand
thelandfill that it operates,is that
correct?

A. Yes.
Q Whathasyour role beenin general

terms?
A. It is oneof the manysitesI

reviewed,I did a financialreviewon whenI
workedfor the FinancialAssuranceSectionof
theSolid Waste,or the Unit of theSolid
WasteSection.

24 Q. And the FinancialAssuranceSection
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of the Solid WasteSectionyou workedat that
sinceFebruaryof ‘99, correct?

A. Correct,right.
Q. And whattrainingdidyou receive

from theFinancialAssuranceSectionof the
Bureauof Land?

A. I wastrainedby,well, combination
of HopeWright, mysupervisor,andJohn
Taylor,who hadpreviouslybeena financial
assurancereviewerfor manyyears. In
additionto thatI reviewedtechnicalmanual
of USEPA trainingof previouspeople.

Q. How longdidyour traininglast from
Hope Wright andJohnTaylor, from whento
when?

A. Well, trainingis sort of ongoing
hereat theAgency. I don’t know whenit
endedexactly.

Q. Wastherea formal trainingprogram
whenyou first started?

A. No.
Q. So, whenyouwerean accountant

traineefor the FinancialAssurance
Department,therewasno specificclass,

orarticle,or documentthat youusedin
orderto becomefamiliar with whatthejob
entailed?

A. Justdoingreviewson the individual
facilities,andworkingwith HopeandJohn,
andcomparingthat to the regulationsandthe
EnvironmentalProtectionAct. Thatwasthe
training.

Q. How manyfacilities didyou workon
whenyou werewithin that Department?

A. Hundreds,I couldn’tgive you an
exactnumber.

Q. Of thosehundredsof facilities did
you everhaveany experiencewith Section
811.717?

A. I would haveto takea look at that
section.

Q. WhenI tell you 811.717,doesthat
ring a bell asto --

A. It is within the financialassurance
regulations,but I don’t know that specific
one.

Q. You don’t knowthat asthe section
thatinvolves alocalgovernmentalunit

15

1 guarantee,is that correct?
2 A. Thatsoundsright. I haven’tlooked
3 at the regulationsfor financialassurancefor
4 almostnine months.
5 Q. In the four yearsthat youwere in
6 that department-- strike that - - is that
7 right,was it four yearsor five years?
8 A. Almost five.
9 Q. In that five yearsthat youwere

10 in that Department,didyou everhaveany
11 experiencewith a localgovernmentalguarantee
12 to complywith financialassurancesas opposed
13 to someothermethod?
14 A. I believetherewerea couple
15 facilities thatuseda local government
16 guarantee.
17 Q. Whichones?
18 A. I don’t know the namesof them. I
19 don’t rememberthem.
20 Q. Whenwasit?
21 A. Somewhereoverthat five years. I
22 don’t know. Thelocal governmentguaranteeis
23 prettyuncommon.That’s why I sayI don’t
24 really rememberthefacilities.

Q. You mentionedthatyou dealtwith
hundredsof different facilities andthe
financialassurancesthat they posted,
correct?

A. Right.
Q How manyhundreds?Are wetalking

900,orarewe talking 100?
A. I don’t know thetotal numberof

facilities betweenhazardouswaste,
undergroundinjection wells, tires, I don’t
know the total number.

Q. And you understandall thoseto be
facilities asdefinedby RCRA andthe regs,is
that correct?

A. Yes.
Q. And sowhat is your,give me your

bestestimate.Is it closer to900 than 100?
A. I seemto recall on our database

therewasover800 facilities.
Q And did you reviewthe financial

assurancesat onepointor anotherof all
thosefacilities?

A. Probablynotall of them,becauseit
wasnotjust myself.
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Q. How manyotheraccountantswerethere

within the FinancialAssuranceDepartment?
A, Overthat periodof time therewas

JohnTaylor,GregYurevich. I think that was
it overthat periodof time.

Q. At any specificperiodof time how
manyaccountantswereemployed?I understand
therewerethreeof you over the five years,
but atone particulartimehow many
accountantswere there?

A. At no timeweretheremorethantwo.
Q So, would it be safeto saythatyou

musthavereviewedat leasthalf of the 800
facilities of which yourecall, correct?

A. Yes.
Q. And so, outof thoseat least400

facilities youonly havearecollectionof two
everusingtheprovisionsof 811,717,is that
right?

A. Correct.
Q. So, it is safeto saythatit was

highlyunusualfor thatsectionto beused,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And youhadno specific training
regardingthatsection,correct?

A. Otherthanreadingtheregulations,
right.

Q. And the only timeyou would everread
the regulationsis whensomeonewouldattempt
to usethat section,right?

A. Right, andthe forms which arealso
partof the regulations,you would haveto
reviewthoseaswell.

Q So,am I correctthatyou probablyin
that four yearsonlyreviewedthatregulation
twice?

A. Probably,but thatregulationis very
closetoa financialtestin almostevery
respectfrom whatI recall,andI havelooked
at manyfinancialtests. Therearecertain
ratiosthat haveto be passed.

Q. Right. I meanthe regulationin
ordertoposttheguaranteepartof that is
thatyou haveto meetthefinancialtest
aspectof 811.716,correct?

A. I don’t knowthe sectionagain,but
you haveto havetangiblenetworth of six

1 timesyourcostestimateor more,andthereis
2 variousotherratiosthat haveto bepassed
3 thatarebondratings.
4 Q. Otherthanwhatwehavealready
5 spokenaboutdidyouhaveany training
6 regardingtheuseof8ll.717?
7 A,No.
8 Q. As you sit heretodayyou cannot
9 recall whatotherfacilities attemptedto use

10 thatsection?
11 A. No.
12 Q. Correct?
13 A. Correct.
14 ~ Are you awareof whetheror notthe
15 BureauofLandFinancialAssuranceSection
16 approvedthe useof that sectionfor anyother
17 facilities?
18 A. lam not sure.
19 0. Is thereanythingthat you canreview
20 thatwould refreshyourrecollectionon what
21 facilities attemptedtouseit, andwhetheror
22 nottheBureauallowedit?
23 A. I would haveto talk with a
24 supervisorof that sectionandseewhat they

hadlistedin their databases,communities
usingthat,andactually look at thoseto give
you anaccurateanswer.

Q. So, thereis adatabasewhereyou
couldsomehowdetermineif indeedthat has
ever beenused?

A. Yes.
Q. Who wouldhaveaccessto that

databasepresently?
A. PresentlyI think the acting

supervisorof that unit is GregBouillon. I
don’t knowhowto spell his lastname.

Q. Are you affiliated with anypolitical
party?

A, No.
Q. What do you understandthe major

issuesto be in the casethat I amhereto
talk to you abouttoday?

MR. GRANT: I amgoingto object,and
askfor a morespecific question.He hasbeen
namedasawitness.

Q. Unlessyour Counseltells you not to
answer--

MR. GRANT: I am sorry, Blake.
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A. Please,canyou restatethe question.
Q. What doyou understandthe major

issuesto be in this case?
A. I know ofsomepermitissues,but

primarily financialassurance,I believe.
Q. What aboutfinancial assurancedoyou

understandto be an issue?
A. I believethey haveinadequate

financialassurancecurrently.
Q. Who?
A. The landfill, Morris Community

Landfill.
0. And howdidyoucometo a beliefthat

therewasinadequatefinancialassurancefor
the Morris CommunityLandfill?

A. I havereviewedthepermit,andI
havereviewedthe financial assurancethey
havesubmitted,andit doesnotsatisfythe
regulations.

Q. Whendidyou last review the permit?
A. It hasbeena coupleyearsat least.
0. Whendidyou last review the

financialassurancethat waspostedor
attemptedtobe posted?

A. Backin FebruaryI lookedat the
bondsthatwere posted.

Q. Haveyou lookedat anythingother
thanbondsthatwerepreviouslyposted
regardingthis caseasto financialassurance?

A. Yeah, at onepoint I did.
Q. Whatdidyou seeotherthanbonds

beingposted?
A. Doyou meanbeforethe bondswere

issued?
0. At anytime.
A. I thinkat one pointtherewasa

letterof creditormorethat wereissuedfor
this. At onepoint therewasatrustfirst.

0. My understandingis that - - strike
that.

Did youprepareat all for your deposition
heretoday?

A. I lookedat stuff yesterdayon this.
Q. What stuff didyou lookat?
A. Someof thebonds,the bondsandthe

ridersto thosebonds.
Q. So,earlierwhenyou saidyou had

been,it hadbeensinceFebruarythatyou

22

lookedat thebonds,thatwasinaccurate,is
thatcorrect?

MR. GRANT: I objecttothe
characterization.I amgoingto objectto the
question.

A. Couldyou statethe questionagain,
please.

Q. I thoughtyou just told me afew
minutesagothat you hadn’tseenthe bondsfor
quite sometime.

MR. GRANT: I am goingto objectto
thequestion.I think that you areharassing.

A. No.
MR. GRANT: I thinkhehasanswered

everyquestionhonestlyandstraightforward
thatyou haveasked.

A. Thepermits,I havenot lookedat
thosepermitsin awhile. I don’t knowan
exactdate. Whenyou saidthe financial
assurance,I saidI lookedat thosebondsin
February.

Q. And you alsolooked at them
yesterday,is thatcorrect?

A. Well, I lookedat photocopiesfrom

myown personalfile that I haveon this
site yesterday.I didn’t look at the bonds
themselves.

Q. Why did you think it wasimportantto
look at the copiesof the bondsyesterday?

A. I just wantedtorefreshmymemory.
I haven’tlookedat this facility for a long
time.

Q. So,therewasnothingin particular
aboutthebondsthatyou felt relevantto the
presentlawsuit,is that correct?

A. Well, no, I think thebonds,don’t
they tie into this? I meanyou’re talking
aboutfinancialassuranceandis it adequate.

0. My questionis why you thoughtit
wasimportantto lookat thosebonds.

A. To refreshmy memory,becauseI
haven’tlookedat thosebondsfor a long
time.

Q. Okay. Otherthanthe bondsdid
you lookat anythingelse?

MR. GRANT: Whatlime arewe
talkingabouthere? Talkingaboutbackin
February,or talkingaboutwhenhe was
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evaluatingthepermit,or arewe talking about
yesterday?

Q. I am talkingaboutin preparingfor
yourdeposition. Otherthan looking at the
bonds,did you look at anythingelse?

A. I lookedat someof the testimony
from this depositionbackhowevermanyyears
ago.

Q. Whatexactlywithin the testimonyof
your depositiondid you review?

A. Majority of it. I don’t know. I
readthroughit. Lookedat thebackground,
lookingfor dateson whenI switchedjobs,and
thatkind of stuff.

Q. Wasthereanythingwithin that
depositionthatyou felt wasparticularly
relevant?

A. I guessthebond issue,the 570
circular. I thoughtthatwasrelevant.

Q. Otherthanthat?
A. No.
Q. Did you look at any otherdocuments

otherthanyourdep,previousdeptestimonyin
anunderlyingcase,andthebonddocuments?

Otherthan thosetwo documentsdid you look at
anythingelse?

MR. GRANT: I amgoingto askto
clari~r.Are you talking aboutinpreparing
for thedeposition?

0. Right nowall my questionsarewith
regardto preparingfor your deposition,okay.

MR. GRANT: All right.
Q. Until we move ontoanothertopic.
A. So, thebondsI lookedat, orthe

copiesof them,theridersto thosebonds,and
thepreviousdeposition.

Q. Did you reviewany submissionsfrom
the CommunityLandfill Company,Incorporated
to theIFFA?

A. I don’t know. What do you meanby
that?

0. Did you reviewanydocumentsthat
weresubmittedby CommunityLandfffl Company,
Incorporatedto the EPA?

A. I amnotsureif those,the copiesof
thebondshadmaybecoverlettersor something
from them. They mighthave. I don’t
remember.

1 Q. Did you ever reviewanycost
2 estimatesfrom - - strikethat.
3 Whenyou werepreparingfor your
4 deposition,didyou review anycostestimates
5 from CommunityLandfill Company,Incorporated?
6 A.No.
7 Q. Did you reviewanycostestimates
8 from any consultantsconcerningtheMorris
9 Landfill?

10 A. No.
11 0. What do you - - excuseme for having
12 comeinto this casesomewhatlate - - whatdo
13 you referto theMorris Landfill as? Is that
14 whatyou guyscall it?
15 A. I haveheardit calledMorris
16 CommunityLandfill or CLC.
17 0. ThroughoutthisdepositionI will
18 call it Morris CommunityLandfill, okay?
19 A. Okay.
20 Q. So, otherthanyourdepositionand
21 thebonddocuments,you reviewednothingelse
22 in preparationfor your depositiontoday,
23 correct?
24 A. Correct.

Q. Now, my understandingis you met
with Counselbeforethis deposition,is that
right?

A. Yes.
0. Thatmeetingtookplacewhen?
A, Backin February,I think it was.

MR. GRANT: We are goingto have to
clarify, Counsel. Thereis internalJEPA
counsel,andthereis me.

Q. Backin Februarywho did you meet
with?

A. BruceKugler.
Q. Did anybodyelseattendthatmeeting?
A. No.
0. Thepurposeof the meetingwasto

preparefor this deposition?
A. It wassomeinterrogatoriesthat

I wasjustgiving information to Bruce,
regardinglike bondsor answeringquestions
like that.

Q How longdid thatmeetingtake?
A. I don’t recall,a couplehoursmaybe.
Q. Otherthanthatonemeetingwith Mr.

Kuglerhaveyou metwith anyothercounselin
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preparingfor yourdepositiontoday?

A. I met with BruceandChris Grant
yesterday.

0. Did anybodyelseattendthatmeeting?
A. No.
Q. Wheredid that meetingtakeplace?
A. In this room.
Q. How longdid that meetingtake?
A. Maybe45 minutes.
Q. Otherthanyour depositionandthe

bondsdidyou review anyotherdocumentsin
eitherof thosemeetings?

A. I can’t honestlytell you from back
in February. I don’t rememberwhat we
reviewedat that time.

0. Okay. Yesterdaydidyou reviewany
otherdocumentsotherthanthebondsandyour
dep?

A. I lookedat the bondsandthe riders
to thosebonds,

Q. You did not look at yourdeposition
yesterday?

A. I lookedat the depositiontoo.
Q. Otherthanthe bonds,the ridersof

thebondsandthe deposition,anythingelse
thatyou lookedat yesterday?

A. I don’t believeso.
Q. You did not review the regulations

under811.700,is that right?
A. Actually let me correctsomething.

JoyceMunie wasalsoat the meetingyesterday,
andI did haveto askherfor acopyof the
regulationsto look at oneof theseparts,
becauseI haven’tlookedat it in, you know,
seven,eight months. So, I did look at 8111
think it was 700F.

0. Why did you look at 811.7001’?
A. That’swherethe financialassurance

regulationsstart,I believe.
Q. Well, assuranceregulationsstarfat

811.700,correct?Why didyouparticularly
look at F?

A. Fjust comesto mind. I may bewrong
aboutthat. I would haveto look at it.

Q. Well, so you don’t recall
specifically - - well, here,let me showyou
811.700F.

MR. GRANT: Do you know howcurrent
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this is? Thesethingsdochange.
MR. PORTER: I printedit off

yesterday. Currentenough?
MR. GRANT: I don’t think theyhave

takenany actionsincethen.
A. I think it wasF.
Q. That’sjust the generalsectionthat

sayssomeonehasto postfinancialassurance,
correct?

A. Correct.
Q. Otherthanthat one sectionof

81 1.700F did you review any othersections
within thoseregulations?

A. Thereis anothersectionI lookedat.
I will haveto look at the regulationsto tell
you though.

MR. PORTER: Off the record.
(Whereupontherewasthenhadan off
the recorddiscussion.)
MR. PORTER: Backon the record.

Q. After havingreviewed811.700et
seq.,you havenow seenor refreshedyour
recollectionthatyou alsoreviewed811.707
yesterday,is that correct?

A. Yes.
0. Why did you review 811.707?
A. Becausethis facility hasmultiple

performancebondsissued,andmechanisms
guaranteeingperformancecannotbe combined
with othermechanisms.

Q. That’syourunderstandingof what
811.707provides?

A. Yes.
Q. Isn’t it truethat 707actually

providesan owneroperatormay satisfythe
requirementsof this sub-partby establishing
morethanone financialmechanismpersite?

A. Theymayunlessthoseguaranteeing
performance.Seethe partthat saysexcept
thoseguaranteeingperformance.

Q. Showmewhat it is youaretalking
about.

A. Exceptthe mechanismsguaranteeing
performanceratherthanpaymentmaynot be
combinedwith otherinstruments.So, if you
havea performancebond,it cannotbe combined
with any otherinstrument.

0. Why didyou believethat thatsection
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wasimportantto reviewin regardto this
case?

A. Becausetheyhavethreeperformance
bonds.

Q. Who hasthreeperformancebonds?
A. CLC or Morris CommunityLandfill.
Q. So, it is your understandingthere

are presentlypendingthreeperformancebonds,
is that correct?

A. Correct.
Q. And doyou think thatthat somehow

violates 811.707?
A. Yeah.
0. Why?
A. Becausethey havecombinedthree

performanceinstruments.
Q. Well, thestatute- - strike that.
Theregulationnowhereindicatesthat

performanceinstrumentscannotbecombined,
doesit?

A. Exceptthemechanismsguaranteeing
performanceratherthanpaymentmaynotbe
combinedwith otherinstruments.

4. Theotherinstrumentsreferencing

34
1 instrumentsotherthanperformance
2 instruments,is that correct?
3 A. No,meaningoneinstrumentis a
4 performancebond. Whenyou arecombiningthat
5 with anotherinstrument,that’sanother
6 performancebondin this case.
7 4. Well, wheredoesit saythat in the
8 regulation?
9 A. I canreadit to you again. It says

10 exceptthe mechanismsguaranteeingperformance
11 ratherthanpaymentmay notbe combinedwith
12 otherinstruments.A performancebond,
13 whatevernumberit is,call it numberone,is
14 an instrument. You haveperformancebond
15 numbertwo. Here is anotherinstrument.
16 4. No. It is the sameclassof
17 instrument,correct?
18 A. But they don’t sayclassof
19 instrument. You maynot combinea performance
20 bondwith anyinstrument. An instrumentis
21 onebond. An instrumentis anotherbond.
22 4. Actually doesn’tthe statuteprovide
23 that exceptthe mechanisms,plural,
24 guaranteeingperformanceratherthanpayment

maynotbe combinedwith otherinstruments,
plural? So,wouldn’t you agreethat the
statute- - strike that - - the regulationin
andof itself contemplatesyoucanhave plural
multiple performancebonds?

A. I don’t interpretthat that way.
4. What possibleinterpretationcould

therebefor theword mechanismsin plural?
A. I don’t interpretthatthat way.
4. Is that yourunderstandingof the

purportedviolation of this landfill that they
havecombinedperformancebonds?

A. No, This is just somethingseparate.
Theviolationswith the bondsarebecausethey
arenotlistedon the 570 circular,andthey
arecurrentlynot approvedby the Illinois
StateDepartmentof Assurance.Thoseareboth
componentsof the performancebondandthe
paymentbondrequirementsfor 811.

4. Okay.
A. So,this is somethingseparate.I am

just telling you this is a sectionI also
looked at yesterday.

4. And otherthanthis sectionandthe

onewe referencedbeforeyou lookedat no
othersections,is that correct?

A. That’s correct.
4. Now, did you review any statutes?
A. I don’t -- no.
4. Procedurallywhat is your

understandingof how we got to whereweare
todayin this case?

A. Therewasa permitissuedbasedon
financialassurancethatwas laterdetermined
to be inadequate.We still don’t have
adequatefinancialassuranceafterhowever
manyyearsthat’sbeen,andthat’sa
requirementof thepermit.

4. Did you oryour Departmentat the
timerequestthat the AttorneyGeneralfile
the instantlawsuit?

A. I don’t recall.
4. Do you knowhow it cameaboutthe

instantlawsuitwasfiled?
A. No.
4. You werenot involvedin any

conversationwith the AttorneyGeneral’s
Office aboutfiling this lawsuit,is that
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correct?

A. Not thatI recall.
4. I am correctthatyou werethe

individualthatwas responsiblefor
determiningwhetheror notfinancial
assurances- - strike that.

I am correctthatyou werethe individual
that wasresponsiblefor determiningwhether
ornot thatfinancialassuranceregulations
hadbeenviolated,correct?

A. Correct.
4. At somepoint didyou evermakea

determinationin this casethattherewassome
violation of the financialassurance
regulations?

A. Yes.
4. What regulationdidyoubelievewas

violated?
A. I haveto lookat the sectionagain,

but it is the sectionpertainingto the bonds.
So,it would be 811.700F,but811.712is the
sectionthat talksaboutthe performance
bonds.

4. Okay. Otherthan811.700Fand 712,

at no timehaveyou concludedthat anyother
sectionof theregulationswasviolated,is
that correct?

MR. GRANT: I object to thequestion.
I don’t thinkhetestified toanythinglike
that.

MR. PORTER I am nottrying to
characterizeanyprevioustestimony.

A. Could you stateyour questionagain,
please.

(Whereuponthe reporterthenreadthe
requestedtestimony.)

A. No, I don’t believeanyother
sectionsor regulations.

4. So, my statementis correctyou don’t
haveanyopinionthat anyothersectionof the
regulationswasviolated,correct?

A. Of the financialassurance
regulations,that’swhat you’retalking about?

4. Right.
A. Yes,youarecorrect.
4. And now let’s broadenit from

there. Do you haveanopinionthatanyother
enviromnentalregulationof anytypehasbeen

violated?
A. Possiblywith the permit. I don’t

know whatthat regulationis though.
4. You don’t anticipateeverproviding

any testimonyon somepermitviolation,
correct?

A. No,
4. You don’t haveanyintentionof

providingsuchtestimony,correct?
A. No.

MR. GRANT: I object. Wehaven’tput
togetherour caseyet. We havedisclosedhim
asa witnessin the case.So,we aregoingto
reservethe right to amendthat if weneedto
lateron.

4. Well, asyou sit heretodayyou
don’t knowof anyothersectionotherthan
the two you just mentionedof 35 fflinois
AdministrativeCodethat hasbeenviolated,
correct?

A. Correct.
4. You don’t knowof anyother

environmentalstatuteor regulationthat in
your opinionhasbeenviolated,correct?

A. Probablythe Act, probablythe
EnvironmentalProtectionAct.

4. Whatsectionof the Act do you have
anopinionhasbeenviolated?

A. I would haveto look at that section,
somethingin Z1.

4. Are you talkingnow aboutthesection
that referencesfinancialassurancesneedto
beposted,andthe regulationswill bedrafted
by the EPA?

A. Right.
4. Perhapsthat’s 21.1A?
A. Yeah,I would haveto look at it.

Thatcouldbe.
4. Otherthanthe section- - strike

that.
Am I correctthat asyou sit heretoday

you don’t know eventhe sectionnumberof the
Illinois CompiledStatutesthat references
financialassurance,correct?

A. No. I would haveto lookat them
again.

4. But otherthanthat possiblesection
in the Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct
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41 43
youhavenootheropinionthat anyother
sectionhasbeenviolated,correct?

A. Correct.
4. At no time in preparationfor your

depositiondid you review 811.715,16, or 17,
is thatright?

A. I don’t believeso. I may have
backin Februarylookedat it. I don’t
remember,

4. You understandthat thereareother
methodsthat an owneroroperatorcan meet
financialassurancesotherthan811.712,
correct?

A. Yes,correct.
4. As amatterof fact,would you agree

that the purposeof Section21.1A of the
Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct and
sub-partG of the regulationsor the 811.700
regsis to assurethatresourcesareavailable
to performclosureandpostclosure
activities,correct?

A. Correct.
4. To yourknowledgearethereany

closureor postclosureactivitiesthatmy
42

client, the City of Morris, or the operator,
the CommunityLandfill Company,Incorporated,
havefailed toperform?

A. I don’t know.
4. You arenotawareof any such

activitiesthat havenot occurred,correct?
A. lam not aware.
4. No one hasevertoldyou that they

failedto performsomeclosureor postclosure
activity, correct?

A. No.
4. My statementwascorrect?
A. Your statementis correct.
4. To yourknowledgewhatdifferentways

could the operatorandthe ownermeetthe
financialassurancerequirementsof the Act in
the regs?

A. If theycouldpasstheratiosor the
bondrating,possiblythey couldusea local
governmentguarantee.Theycould do a letter
of credit, trustfund. I think that’s about
it, performanceorpaymentbond.

4. Anythingelse?
A. I would haveto review the

regulationsto seeall of the differentones
they coulduse. Oh,insurance,I am sorry,
that’s anotherone.

4. Anythingelseto yourknowledge?
A. No.
4. At any time haveyou doneany

analysisofwhetheror not the City of Morris
meetsthe financialtest?

A. No, I havenot.
4. You understandwhat I meantby the

financialtest?
A. Uh-huh.
4. Is that yes?
A. Yes, that’s yes.
4. What is yourunderstandingof the

financialtestasit relatesto the 700
regulations?

A. Financialtestyou arecalling the
corporateguaranteeI am assuming,right?

4. I just wantto knowwhatyou
understandthefinancial testto be.

A. Financialtestis showingyoupass
certainratios,thatyou canafford to do
closure. You haveso muchtangible networth

or strongenoughbondratingthatyou canpass
the financialtest,andprovidesomeguarantee
that youcan provideclosureandpostclosure
care.

4. And to yourknowledgethe City of
Morris meetsthat financial test,correct?

A. I don’t know,
4. Why haven’tyou performedthat

analysis?
A. To my knowledgethey havenot

submittedanythingto try to passthose
ratios.

4. Well, isn’t it truethat at onepoint
the City offeredto posttheguarantee
referencedin Section717?

A. I don’t know aboutthat,
4. At somepoint isn’t it truethat you

offeredan opinionthat 717 could not beused
by the City of Morris?

A. I don’t remember.
4. You don’t recalleverdoing that,

correct?
A, Correct.
4. So, asyou sit heretodayyouhave
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45 47
1 no reasonto believethat the City of Morris
2 could notuseSection717,which is the local
3 governmentguaranteesection,correct?
4 A. Correct.
5 4. You understand- - strike that.
6 Let me showyoua documentthat I amgoing
7 to havemarkedasExhibit One,
8 (Whereuponsaiddocumentwasduly marked,
9 for purposesof identification,as

10 BlakeHarrisExhibit NumberOne,asof
11 this date.)
12 4. Let meshowyou the documentI have
13 hadmarkedBlake HarrisExhibit NumberOne
14 with today’sdateon it. Haveyou seenthat
15 documentbefore?
16 A. I don’t recall if I haveseenthis
17 beforeor not.
18 4. Wouldyou agreethat thatis the cost
19 estimateconcerningthe landfill at issue?
20 A. It appearsto bea costestimate.
21 4. Did you not review that costestimate
22 prior to this deposition,correct?
23 A. Right.
24 4. Do you knowwhetheror not that cost

1 estimatewaseverapprovedby the Financial
2 AssuranceDepartmentof theBureauof Land?
3 A. FinancialAssuranceDepartmentdoes
4 notapprovecostestimates.
5 4. Do youknow if the Financial
6 AssuranceDepartmenteverobjectedto that
7 costestimate?
8 A. I don’t know. Theydon’t review
9 them. So,I don’t knowwhy theywould.

10 4. Who doesreview thecostestimates?
11 A. PermitSection.
12 4. Do youknow if that costestimatewas
13 everobjectedto, denied,orevenrespondedto
14 by the PermitSection?
15 A. I don’t know.
16 4. Do you haveanyunderstandingof how
17 muchfinancialassurancewassupposedto be
18 postedby the owneroroperator?
19 A. I believeit wassomethingaround
20 17 million, I would haveto look at the
21 individual permitsto tell you though.
22 4. You mentionedthatyou reviewedthe
23 permitsbeforeyour dep,correct?
24 MR. GRANT: I don’t thinkhe said

46

that. I think that’s mischaracterizinghis
testimony. He reviewedthe bondsandbond
ridersI believehe said,

4. Februaryyou reviewedthe permits,or
am I rememberingthatincorrectly?

A. I don’t rememberif we reviewedthe
permitsat thattime or not.

4. You don’t -- strike that.
How did youcometo theconclusionthat

17.8million dollarswasthe amountof
financialassurancethat wassupposedto be
posted?

A. It wasanumberthat the Permit
Sectionwould havegiven me,or I could have
determinedlooking throughthepermits,either
way.

4. Doyou knowif the operator,
CommunityLandfill Company,Incorporated,or
the City of Morris eversubmitteda cost
estimatethattotal, 17.8million dollars?

A. No, I haven’tseenthe actualcost
estimate,

4. So,Exhibit NumberOne,thatmay have
beenthe first timeyou ever sawthat

48
document,is that correct?

A. Today,yes.
4. Well, at any time.
A. At anytime, I don’t recall seeing

this documenteverbefore.
4. Okay. So, if I understandwhenyou

weredoingyourjob asaccountantfor the
FinancialAssuranceDepartment,you would just
acceptwhatthe PermitDepartmentwould tell
you thelevel of financialassuranceneededto
be,correct?

A. Theywould saythis is theamount
that weneed. Here is the permit thatit is
coming from, We would lookat the permit,
find thatsection,andthenof course,
documentthat,andthencomparewhat they
providedin financialassuranceto that
amount.

4. Do you know whetheror notthe actual
closurecosts - - strike that.

Did you ever learnthattherewere two
differentparcelsat issuein regardto the
landfill?

A. At onepoint I foundout therewere
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49 51
1 two differentparcels.
2 4. Whendid you learnthat?
3 A. Sometimeyearor two ago. I don’t
4 recall theexacttime.
5 4. And therewasa ParcelA anda Parcel
6 B, is thatright?
7 A. That’s what I haveheard.
8 4. Do you knowif thoseparcelswere on
9 the eastandwestsideof a specificroad?

10 A. I do notknow.
11 4. I takeit thenyou do notknow
12 whetheror not thetotal costestimatefor
13 ParcelA of 2.27million dollarsis accurate
14 ornotasreflectedby Exhibit One,correct?
15 A. Correct.
16 4. You alsodon’t know if the totalcost
17 estimatefor ParcelB is $4,807,000.00,is
18 that correct?
19 A. I don’t know.
20 4. Did youeverlearnwhetherornotone
21 of theseparcelshadsomesubstantialspace
22 available?
23 A. I don’t knowwhetherit did or not.
24 4. Did youeverlearnthat oneof these

parcelsonly acceptedcleanconstruction
debris?

A. Don’t know that.
4. Did you everlearn- - strike that.
I takeit thenyou haveno ideahowfull

ParcelA is andParcelB is?
A. Correct. I haveno ideaabout that.
4. And you neverhadanyideaabout

that,correct?
A. Right.
4. Now, is it your understandingthat

costestimatesassumethata landfill will be
completelyfilled?

A. Costestimatesvaryovertime. I
don’t know. I don’t reviewthe cost
estimates.I imagineat onepointtheywould
assumecompletelybeingfilled.

4. Do you know whetheror not anactual
costwill be lessif a landfill is never
filled?

A. Yes,I don’t know.
4. You haveabsolutelyno role in

determining- - strike that.
You haveabsolutelynoknowledgeor
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expertisein determininghowmuchit will cost
toclosea landfill, correct?

A. Correct.
4. Am I to understandthatyouare

unawarethatthe City of Morris hasofferedto
providesomesort of local government
guarantee?

A. I don’t recall whetherthey did or
not,

4. At any time?
A. At anytime I don’t recallwhether

they did or not.
4. You wouldagreethattheCity of

Morris astheownerof thepropertywherethe
landfill is locatedcanbea local government
guaranteefor thatlandfill, correct?

A. Theycould providea local government
guarantee,yes,I wouldguesstheycould.

4. I don’twantyou toguess.You spent
years- -

A. Without me looking at the regulations
specifically --

4. I would like you to. What I want you
todo is takea look at in particularSection

811.717Al A, andseeif that refreshesyour
recollection.

A. Whatwasyourquestionthen?
4. My questionis would you agreethat

the City ofMorris could providea local
governmentguaranteeto meetthe financial
assurancerequirements,correct?

A. Yes, I think theyshouldbeable
to.

4. And that’s becausetheyareanowner,
andtheycancertainlyprovideaguaranteeas
long astheymeetthe financialtestsof a
localgovernmententity, correct?

A. Yes.
4. You’re just unawareof whetheror not

theyhaveeverattemptedto do that to date,
correct?

A. Correct.
4. And if theywereto file that

guaranteetomorrow,it wouldbe youropinion
thatthat would meetthe financialassurance
requirements,correct?

A. I would haveto lookat it. I would
haveto seethebondrating, the different
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1 ratios. I don’tknow.
2 4. Let’s give ahypotheticalthen.
3 Assumingthatthe City ofMorris meetsthe
4 bondratingandthe specificratiosof the
5 financialtest,youwould agreethatif they
6 file aguaranteein the nearfuture,that
7 would meet thefinancialassurance
8 requirementsin this case,correct?
9 A. I think theycould do that.

10 4. You agreethat a unit of local
11 governmentdoesnot haveto hire a third party
12 to perform. It canguaranteeperformance
13 itself, correct?
14 A. Theycanguaranteeperformance
15 themselves.
16 4. And a local unit ofgovernmentdoes
17 nothavetoguaranteethat it will paya third
18 partyfor performance,ratherit will
19 guaranteethat it will perform?
20 A. Performorpay.
21 4. So, yourstatementis yes,theycan
22 agreeto performor pay,correct?
23 A. Correct.
24 MR. PORTER: Canyou readbackthe

questionbeforethe lastquestionthat I
asked.
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(Whereuponthe reporterthenreadthe
requestedtestimony.)

Q. Let measkthe questionagain. Would
you agreethatoncea unit of local government
guaranteesperformance,theydo nothaveto
postanyotherfinancialassurance,correct?

A. If theyhavepassedthis test,it
doesnotappearthattheyhaveto provideany
otherfinancialassurance.

4. So,oncethey passthe financial
test,which is actuallyreferencedin 811.716,
theyno longerhaveto post abond or
assurancevehicle,correct?

A. Correct.
4. As you sit heretodayyou do notknow

whetheror notthe City ofMorris passesthe
financialtest,correct?

A. Correct.
4. It is perfectlyappropriatefor a

municipalitythat ownsa landfill toguarantee
its own landfill, correct?

A. Yes,correct.

4. Likewise a municipalownerof a
landfill canbe theguarantorfor the
operator,correct?

A. Correct.
4. Are you awarethatthe City of Morris

hasbeenprovidingleachatetreatmentfor the
facility?

A. No.
4. You don’t haveanyreasonto believe

that the City of Morris - - strike that.
Are you awarethat thereis an agreement

betweentheCity ofMorris andthe operator
regardingtheleachatetreatment?

A. No, notawareof that.
4. I takeit thenyouhavenoknowledge

ofwhetheror not the City of Morris hasever
failed to provideleachatetreatment?

A. I don’t know.
4. Wouldyou agreethat if thereis

actualperformanceof closure,postclosure
activities,that relievesany responsibility
toprovidefinancialassuranceof those
activities,correct?

A. Could you statethat questionagain.

1 4. Probablynot. You would agreethat
2 if indeedthereis actualperformanceof a
3 closure,postclosureactivity, that thereis
4 no needto providefinancialassurancefor
5 that activity, correct?
6 A. Areyou sayingif themunicipality
7 is, theyclosethe landfill andprovideall of
8 the postclosurecare,is therea needfor
9 themfor postfinancialassurance?

10 4. That’sa slightly differentquestion,
11 but I will askthatonetoo.
12 A. I don’t understandyour question.
13 4. You would agreethatif indeedthe
14 City of Morris is treatingthe leachate
15 emanatingfrom thefacility, if any,that
16 thereis no needto postfinancialassurances
17 for leachatetreatment,correct?
18 A. No. I would notsaythat’s correct,
19 becausewhat if tomorrowtheyabandonthe
20 facility.
21 4. Well, you wouldagreethatif a
22 municipalityprovidesanagreementor a
23 guaranteethat they will perform - -

24 A. If theyhaveprovidedtheguarantee.
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A. If theypassthis test,theydo
nothaveto providealternatefinancial
assurance.

4. And so if theyprovideaguarantee
thattheywill perform --

A. Uh-huh.
4. - - andthey are indeedperforming,

obviouslythereis no needto provideany
otherfinancial assurance,correct?

A. If they canpassthis financialtest,
they do not needto providealternate
financialassurance.

MR. GRANT: I askthatwe clarify
which testthatyouaretalkingaboutasfar
asthis test.

4. Let me askthe question. It will be
easierfor you. You are talking aboutthe
financialtestthat’s referencedin 811.716,
correct?

A. Correct.
4. It is actuallyreferencedin 811.717,

but it saysthatthe guarantorshallmeetthe
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requirementsof the local governmentfinancial
testin Section811.716,correct?

A. Correct.
4. And so wheneveryou aresayingmeets

this test,you are talking aboutthat
financialtestreferencedin 811.716?

A. Correct.
4. Throughthis depwheneveryou said

meetsthis test,that’s whatyou meant,
correct?

A. Correct.
4. So, assumethenthatthe City has

offeredto guaranteethat the leachatewill be
treatedfor a hundredyears,andthatthey
agreetodo that freeof charge.You would
agreethereis no needto post 10.8million
dollarsof financialassurancefor that
leachatetreatment,correct?

A. If they havepassedthe financial
testandsatisfiedthe requirementsof 811.716
or 717 like wearetalking about,I would
agreethereis no needto postanalternate
instrument.

4. Let me askthat morecomplete

hypothetical.Let’s assumethat the City of
Morris meetsthe financialtestof 811.716.
Theyoffer to guaranteethatthe leachate
treatmentwill be doneby the City of Morris,
thatit will performleachatetreatmentfor a
hundredyears.Thenthereis noneedto post
10.8million dollarsof financialassurance,
correct?

A. Is your questionif theyhaveasked
that orguaranteedto do that,do they not
haveto passthe financialtest?

4. No. I am posingthe hypothetical
thatthe City ofMorris passesthefinancial
test. You don’t knowthat right now, if
theypassthat test. So, I am posinga
hypotheticalthatthey do indeedpassit.
Now, assumingthe City of Morris passesthat
financialtest,andtheyhaveofferedto
guaranteetheleachatetreatmentfor a hundred
years,you wouldagreethatthereis noneed
to postfinancialassurancefor that leachate
treatment,correct?

A. No. I wouldnot saythat. I would
saytheystill haveto postfinancial

assurance.Thepointof financialassurance
is if tomorrowthey leavethe town, thatwe
havemoneyto paya third partyto do this
work. In this casethey arepostingassets
thattheyhave,bondsor somethinglike that,
thatwe have. I meando you - -

4. You wouldagreethatpostingthe
financialguaranteereferencedin 811.717is
the only financialassurancethat’s required,
correct?

A. If theycanpassthis, this would
be the only financialassurancethat’s
required.

4. And so whenthey meetthatfinancial
test,theydon’t actuallyhaveto postabond.
Theyjust havetoguaranteeperformance?

A. Theywould havetohaveabondrating
or somethinglike that to showthat theycould
actuallycomein hereanddo this work. If
they aremonitoringleachate,which is a
requirementanywayprobablyof theirpermit,
that’s a sideissue.

4. Right. When the City postsits
guarantee,andit meetsthe financialtest,no

60

4. - - that’s all that’s required,
correct?
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A. Correct.
4. Are youawarethat$950,000.00of the

costestimateis for exhumationof wasteoff
ofan existingparcelandonto anotherparcel
for an allegedoverheight?

A. No.
4. Areyou awarethat it is the policy

of the Illinois EnvironmentalProtection
Agencynot to correctoverheightsmerelyfor
the sakeof correctinganoverheight?

MR. GRANT: Is that a question?I
meancanyou askthat asa question?

MR. PORTEIt I amaskingif he is
awareof that.

MIt GIW4T: I amgoingtoobject.
A. Wouldyou mindrestatingit another

way,please.
4. Areyou awarethat thereis apolicy

of the Illinois EnvironmentalProtection
Agencyto allow overheightsto remainin
placeaslongastheydon’t posean additional
risk of run-off or degradationof the site due
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to improperslope?

A. I amnotsurethat would be a Permit
Sectiondecision.

4. So,youdo notknow if that’s the
policy of the EPAor not, correct?

A. I am notsure.
4. Are youawarethatthe IEPA has

recentlytakenover 33 abandonedsites?
A. I don’t knowthenumber. I know

thereare somesitesthat theyhavehadto
takeoverbecausetheownershaveabandoned
the facilities.

4. Do youknow if anyof thosesites
haveoverheight?

A. I don’t know.
4. You understandwhat I meanby over

heightis wherethesite hasgrownhigher
thanit waspermittedto underthe permit,
right?

A. Yes.
4. So, I takeit you don’t knowhow

the EPA hasreactedor respondedto anyover
heightsof thosesites,is that correct?

A. That’scorrect.

4. Wouldyou agreethat if - - strike
that.

You areawarethat theCity of Morris is
the siting authorityfor thelandfill?

A. Whatdo you meanby that?
4. Well, youunderstandthatunder

Section39.2of the Illinois Environmental
ProtectionAct a local municipalityhasthe
authorityanddutyto permitneworexpanded
facilities - - strike that - - hasthedutyto
determinewhetheror nota site is appropriate
for newor proposedexpansionsof facilities?
Do youunderstandthat?

A. Thatwouldbea PermitSection
decision. I don’t reallyknow thatmuchabout
it.

4. You don’t know anythingaboutlocal
municipalitiesandwhetherornot theyhave
to approvea site locationapplication,
correct?

A. Eight. That’s aPermitSection
decision.

4. You don’t knowwhetheror not the
PermitSectionusuallyallowspermitsto be

amendedor modifiedto allow for an over
heightif it occurs?

A. I don’t know.
4. Assumethatthe City of Morris

performsthenecessarytasksto accomplisha
permitchangefor this landfill suchthat
thereis no longeranoverheight. Wouldyou
agreethat thereis no needto postfinancial
assurancethenfor anoverheight?

A. Couldyou statethatquestionanother
way.

4. Assumethat the City of Morris has
thepermitat issueamendedsuchthatthe
presentheightof thelandfill is permitted.
You would agreethenthatthereis no needto
postfinancialassurancesfor anoverheight,
correct?

A. I guessI don’t know howto answer
thatquestion. Couldyou stateit in another
way?

4. I thoughtI did. Do you havea
specificproblemwith the question?

A. I guesswhat I don’t understandis
you aresayingif theyamendthis overheight,

otherfinancialassuranceis required,
correct?
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which I don’t evenknowabout,if thereis an
overheightat a landfill, theyamendit in
whatway?

4. If theyamendor modify - - strike
that.

If theyget apermitchangesuchthat
the presentheightof the landfill is
permitted.

A. Permitted,butdoesnotaffectthe
costestimate,is thatwhatyou’re --

4. Strike that. In your review of
variousfinancialassurancedocumentation
overthe four yearsthatyouwerein that
department,didyou everseecostestimates
for correctionof overheight?

A. I don’t recallif thosedealtwith
correctionof overheight.

4. In the entiretime thatyou workedin
the FinancialAssuranceDepartmentdid you
everseean owneroperatorhaveto pay
financialassurancesbaseduponanover
height?

A. I didnotdeterminetechnicallywhat
went into that costestimate.So, I can’tsay
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1 if it was for an overheightor notin that
2 periodof time.
3 4. All thatyou didwasto determine
4 whetheror not the financialassurancesthat
5 werepostedmet thebottomline numberthat
6 you weregiven,is that correct?
7 A. Correct.
8 4. And so againyoudon’t recall ever - -

9 strike that.
10 I thinkmy recordis clear,butyouwould
11 agreethat underSection811.717theCity of
12 Morris can simply agreeto performingthepost
13 closureactivities,andthat’sall that’s
14 requiredin the financialassurance
15 regulations,correct?
16 A. If theymeetthecomponentsof the
17 financialtestthatyou werereferringto
18 previously, that’s all theyhaveto postfor
19 financialassurance.
20 4. Let measkit thatway. Assumingthe
21 City ofMorris meetsthefinancialtest,it is
22 your understandingthat all it hasto do is
23 guaranteethat it will performthe post
24 closureactivitiesandclosureactivities,and

no further financialassuranceis required,
correct?

A. Correct.
MR. PORTER: I havenothingfurther.
MS. GRAYSON: Let’s takea short

break.
(Whereuponthe depositionwasin
recess.)

MR. PORTER: I actuallyhavea couple
others. I withdrawmy no further question
statement.

EXAMINATION BY
MR. PORTER(CONTINUED):

4. Assumingthat the owneror operator
postsfinancial assurancein the short term,
areyou awareof anyenvironmentaldamageor
otherdamagecausedby the lack,or alleged
lackof financialassuranceup to today?

A. I am notawareof any.
4. And youare not awareof anydamage

to the Illinois EnvironmentalProtection
Agencyor the Stateof Illinois causedby the
lackof financialassurance,correct?

A. Otherthanthe hoursI seemto spend
on this particularsiteoverthe lastfive
years,no.

4. At anytime did you eversuggestto
the City of Morris to file under811.717?

A. I don’t rememberif I suggestedthat
or not.

4. Do you knowif anybodydid?
A. I don’t know. Theoptionsare there.

Theycangetthemright off ourweb site.
4. Well, you areawarethat theoperator

wasresponsiblefor postingfinancial
assurancefor manyyears,andthenpayingthe
premiumto the City subsequentto that, is
that correct?

A. I don’t knowwho hepaid thepremium
to,he or they.

4. So,youdon’t knowbetweenthe owner
operatorwho it wasthat wasacquiringthe
financialassurancehistoricallyfor this
site,correct?

A. Last I recall oneof the bondswas
paid for by the City, andthetwo otherswere
from CLC.
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4. And whenthosebondswerebeing
posted,at anytimedid you everhaveany
conversationswith anyonefrom CLC or the City
indicatingthat thosebondscould havebeen
avoidedsimply by following 811.717?

A. Did I everproposethat to them?
4. Right.
A. I don’t recall. If theywouldhave

askedme for options,I would haveexplained
whattheycouldhavedoneunderall of them,
butI don’t recallhavinganyconversations
with them.

4. Otherthanwhat youhavetestifiedto
today,do you haveanyotheropinions
concerningthiscase?

A. No.
MR. PORTER I will go ahead-- I

havenofurther questions.
MS. GRAYSON: Justa fewquestions.

EXAMINATION BY
MS. GRAYSON:

4. Do you haveanyopinionsregarding
penaltiesin this case?
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4. If I wasto provideyou with cost
estimatesfor orprovidedby the City of
Morris andCommunityLandfill Companyasto
the costof financialassurance,would you be
ableto comeupwith, providemewith some
sort of opinionasto theamountof financial
assurance,the costof financialassurance
that wouldhavebeenpaid duringtheperiod
that weare talkingabout,which is 2000and
2004at this point?

A. Yes.
MR. GRANT: That’s it.
MR. PORTER: I havea couplequick

follow-upson that.

RE-EXAMINATION BY
MIt PORTER:

4. As you sit heretodayyou haveno
suchopinions,correct?

A. Correct.
4. Isn’t it truethatbackin 2000 the

City of Morris couldhaveutilized 811.717,
which wouldhavecostnothing?

A. I don’t knowwhethertheycould have
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1 A.No.
2 4. Haveyou reviewedanyof therecords
3 regardingpenalties?
4 A. Any recordsinvolving penaltieswith
5 thiscase?
6 4. Yes.
7 A.No.
8 MS. GRAYSON: I haveno further
9 questions.

10 MX. GRANT: Justa couple.
11
12 EXAMINATION BY
13 MR. GRANT:
14 4. Mr. Harris,you are awarethatI have
15 namedyou asapotentialwitnessin this case,
16 isn’t that correct?
17 A. Yes.
18 4. If I would provideyou with
19 information asto theavoidedcostof
20 providingfinancialassurance,would you be
21 abletocomeupwith an opinionasto money
22 that wassavedby failure to providefinancial
23 assurance?
24 A. Yes.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20
21

22
23
24

72

or not.
4. Assumingtheymeetthe financial

tests,you would agreethatbackin 2000the
City of Morris couldhavepostedfinancial
assurancemerelyby using 811.717,which would
havecostnothing?

A. If theypassedtheratios,sure.
4. And thentherewouldhavebeen

absolutelynosavingsto the City of Morris
for notpostingfinancialassurancefrom the
year2000throughtoday,correct?

A. Well, you could saythat,butthey
alsohaveto tie upa certainamountof
tangibleto passthe test.

4. Wherewithin the statutedo you
seethat any amountof the City’s bonding
authoritywould in any wayhaveto betied up
merelybypassinga financialtest?

A. Putit thisway,you haveX amountof
tangible networth thatcannotbeusedfor
somethingelse. Saylike with myjob now they
wantedto get a loanfor watertreatment
improvement.Theycouldn’tgetthat loan
becauseof thebondingauthority.



4. Showme within theregulationwhere
thereis any indication that the City of
Morris’s bondingauthoritywould haveto be
tied up in orderto provideaguaranteeunder
811.717.

A. It would not saythat it would have
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to be tied up.
4. It doesn’tsaythat on thefinancial

assurance test either, does it? I am sorry,

strike that.
It doesn’tsaythat underthefinancial

testreferencedin 811.716 either,correct?
A. Right. Tangiblethoughmeaningthey

canget it, right?
4. Well, isn’t it true that 811.715

wouldbe themethodthatwould necessarilytie
up theirbondingauthority,which is postinga
bondwithout a surety?

A. Right.
4. And sowouldn’t you agreethatunder

811.717you do not haveto posta bondwithout
a suretyor with a surety?You merelyhaveto
file aguaranteethatyou will perform?

A. Right.

1 Q. And therefore,their bonding
2 authorityis in no way tied up, andthereis
3 no savings whatsoever to the City of Morris
4 from allegedlyfailing to postfinancial
5 assurancessince2000to today’sdate,
6 correct?
7 A. Yes.

MR. PORTER: Nothing further.
MR. GRANT: Mr. Harris -- go ahead.

RE-EXAMINATION BY
MS. GRAYSON:

4. Just something further, have you been
askedto prepareareport in thismatter?

A. No.
MS. GRAYSON: I guesswe would just

like to reservethe right to continuethe
depositionif he doespreparea report.

MR. GRANT: You canmakethat
request.Therehasbeen,thereasonthat
thereis no report is becauseof what I
believearediscoveryissueswith the
Respondentsin this case. We will seewhat
the Boardhasto sayaboutit.

74
STATE or ILLINOIS
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I, Sandra K. Haines, a Notary Public and
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RE-EXAMINATIONBY
MR. GRANT:

4. Mr. Harris,in evaluatingthe
financialassurancefor theMorris Community
Landfill didyou everseeanythingthat
suggestedthat theCity of Morris hadapplied
for localgovernmentguaranteeasdefinedin
theregulations?

A. No, I don’t recall if theyhador
not.

4. Did you ever see any bonds,
performancebondsprovidedby theCity of
Morris for theMorris CommunityLandfill?

A. Yes.
MR. GRANT: That’s all that I have

got.
MR. PORTER: I haveno follow up.

Thankyou very much.
MR. GRANT: We reserve.

(WitnessExcused)
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7 certify that prior to the
8 deposition herein, and on
9 August, 2004, the Deponent

10 was, by me, duly sworn to
11 in relation to the matter
12 herein. That on said date
13 depositionwas taken down
14 me and afterwardsreduced

taking of the
the 25th day of

BLAXE OLIN HARRIS
testify to the truth
in controversy

the foregoing
stenographically by

to typewritten form
foregoing transcript

accurate translation of
notes

hand and seal this 27th
at Taylorville, Illinois.~
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BRIAN WHITE,
a witness, having been first duly sworn upon his

oath, testified as follows:
MR. PORTER: Let the record reflect this is

the discovery deposition of Brian White, taken
after notice,pursuant to all applicable rules of
the illinois Pollution Control Boardandthe
applicable rules of the filinois Supreme Court.

EXAMINATION cONDUcTRI)

BY MR. PORTER:

Q Mr. White, my nameis Rick Porter,and
I • m going to beaskingyou a few questionstoday.
Have you given a deposition before?

A No.
Q All right. I’m surethat you’ve been

told the process,but it’s pretty simple. I’m
goingto askquestions,andyou need to answer
them. I’d like you to wait until I’m done talking
before you answerbecausethat’s going to be easier
for the reporterto take down what you said. Also,
if J ever aska questionandyou don’t understand
it or it’s unclear, just tell me that andI will
rephrase it; but if you answerit, we’re all going
to assumethat you understoodit. Is that

Page4
acceptable?

A Yes.
Q All right. Stateyour whole namefor the

record.
A My nameis Brian Stephen,S-T-E-P-H-E-N,

White.
Q And your age anddateof birth please?
A My age is 46. I was born June7, 1959.
Q And your presentaddress?
A It’s 814 Cypress,C-Y-P-R-E-S-S,Drive,

in Chatham.
Q And lastyearof educationyou completed?
A Lastyearof education would be towardsa

masters in Public Administration.
Q So you havea bachelor’sdegree?
A I have abachelor’sdegreein

EnvironmentalHealth.
Q And whereis thatfrom?
A From Illinois StateUniversity.
Q And whendid you getthat?
A 1983.
Q And thenyou’ve taken someclassessince

thentowardamastersdegree,is that correct?
A Yes.

BRIAN WHrrE
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BRIAN WRITE CondcnseIt’~ 9/20/2005

Q Whereat?
A Startedout at SangamonState University.

It’s nowUniversity of illinois at Springfield.
Q Andwhatmastersdegreeareyou going for?
A It’s a mastersin Public Administration.
Q How far areyou from acquiringthat?
A Fourhours.
Q Andwhendo youexpectto finish that up?
A WhenI finish my paper.
Q What’syour bestestimateon that?
A I’m hopingthisfall.
Q Okay. What’syour paperon?
A It’s on the meaningof Public

Administration.
MS. GRAYSON: I’m sony. Did yousaythe

meaning?
A Yes. I forgot wehadsomebodyon the

phone.
Q All right. Otherthanyour masterswork,

anyothersecondaryeducationthatyou havehad
since 1983?

No.
Everbeenchargedwith or convictedof a

Page6
A No.
Q Please -- well, what’syourpresent

occupation?
A My payroll title is Public Service

Administrator. My workingtitle is ComplianceUnit
Managerfor the Bureauof Land.

Q I’m sorry. Canyourepeatthat, the last
part? What’syour workingtitle?

A My workingtitle is ComplianceUnit
Managerfor the Bureauof Land.

Q Andwhat’sthe differencebetweenyour
working title andyour actualtitle?

A My payroll title is onegiven to usby
the CentralManagementServices. Everybodyhasa
title in the stateof Illinois whichmaynot be as
descriptiveas theirworkingtitle.

Q Got you. How longhaveyoubeenemployed
as the ComplianceUnit Manager?

A SinceJanuaryof ‘91.
Q Andhow long haveyouhadyour payroll

title?
A Oh,boy, sinceprobably ‘94. They --

what theydid in the stateof Illinois was they did
somebroadbandingof titles, sotheychangedsome

Page7
of the names. So it wassomewherearound‘94 for
the Public ServiceAdministratortitle.

Q SinceJanuaryof 1991 haveyou been
employedin anyotherwayother than for the state
of Illinois?

A No.
Q Prior to 1991 wherewereyou employed?
A I was employedatthe EPA.
Q In what capacity?
A In the ComplianceUnit.
Q And that’s againthe IEPA?

A Yes.
Q In the ComplianceUnit. Andwhatwas

your title there?
A EnvironmentalProtectionSpecialistI,

EnvironmentalProtectionSpecialistII,
EnvironmentalProtectionSpecialistia.

Q And chronologicallywhen did youhave
thosepositions?

A I startedwith EPA in 1988, andbasically
by probably ‘891 was an EPSii, by ‘901 was an
EPS in, andby ‘94 I becamean EPSIV, whichthen
turnedinto the broadbandedtitle of PSA, Public
ServiceAdministrator.

Q Okay. But basicallysince 1991 you’ve
hadthe sameduties?

A No, the dutieswereexpandedin 2002 to
takeon anotherprogram.

Q All right. Whatwereyour duties from
‘91 to 2002?

A It was as ComplianceUnit Manager
basicallydoingthe complianceenforcement
activities,overseeingthose,for the Bureau of
Land.

Q What do you meanby the enforcement

activities? Enforcementactivitiesof what?
A It’s the informal enforcementactivities

from trackingthe inspectionreports,information
aboutviolationnotices. We usedto issuethe
violation noticesdirectlyout of theCompliance
Unit when it was all centralized. We would issue
returncomplianceletters,avariety of other
informal enforcementlettersat thattime.

Q Okay. Since 1991 hasyour role beento
seeto it that the noticesof violation are issued,
or are you literally inspecting an order to
determinewhetheror not anotice is warranted?

Doesthatmakesense?
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Page9 Pagell

A If you couldrepeatit please.
Q I guesswhatI’m askingis: Is your

functionprimarily, since1991,procedural,or are
you literally substantivelymaking determinationsof
whetherornot a noticeofviolation is warranted?

A It’s procedural.

Q And what departmentmakesthe

determinationof whetheror not a noticeof

violation is warranted?
A It actuallycomesfrom thepeoplethat

eitherdo the inspectionsor do the reviewsof

records.

Q And what aretheirtitles? Well, let’s
narrow it down. It soundsto me like your function

is for any violation that falls underBureauof
Land, is thatcorrect?

A All violation noticeswould’ve somehow
beenhandledby ourunit in someway.

Q Okay. Andwhatvarious--arethere
varioussubdepartmentsthat conductthereviewsand
inspectionsto issuenoticesof violations? For
example,someonethat’s reviewingfinancial

assurancesis in the FinancialAssurance
Department,is thatcorrect?

Page10
A They’re generally-- we don’t necessarily

havea unit calledthat,but it hasbeencalled
that at varietiesof times-- at different times.
We’vegonethrougha varietyof reorganizations,
andwe’ve haddifferent labelsput on it.

Q All right. So breakit downfor me.
What -- your unit is whatagain,just Bureauof

Land, FinancialCompliance-- or I’m sony,Bureau
of Land,what?

A I’m part offr WasteReductionand
ComplianceSection.

Q Okay. And is therea subsectionto that?
A It’s the ComplianceUnit.
Q And within the ComplianceUnit, are there

any subsetsthatreportto that unit?
A No.

Q Flow manyinspectorsand reviewersare
therethatwould be turningin inspectionand
review reportsto your unit?

A Thereare threeaccountantsin the --

MS. GRAYSON: Did you saythreeaccountants?

A Yes. Threeaccountantsin the Compliance

Unit atthis time andoneaccountantsupervisor.

Q And areyouthebossof theaccountant

supervisor?

A Yes.

Q Andhaveyou everactedas a revieweror

accountant?

A I’ve completedfinancial recordreviews
in the past

Q Andwhenwasthelasttimeyoudidthat?
A On my ownprobably,and this is my best

guess,about 1989 or ‘90.

Q Okay. In preparationfor your deposition

today did you review anydocuments?

A Yes.
Q What documentsdid you review?

A Basicallythe documentsthat are

associatedwith the affidavit.

Q And whatdocumentsarethose?

A Ireviewedsomeof the permits. I

reviewedthenoticeof violation. I reviewedsome

of the financial documents.
MS. GRAYSON: Reviewedwhat? I’m sorry. I

didn’t hearthe lastone.

A Someof the financialdocuments.
Q Whatfinancialdocumentsdid you review?

A I reviewedthe bondsfrom Frontier. I

reviewedthe recordreviewby Blake. I reviewed

theresponsesto the violation notice.

Q Anything else?

A There’sprobablysomeotherstuff in

there.

Q Did you reviewBlake Harris’sdeposition?

A Yes, someof it.

Q And afterhavingreviewedthatdeposition

do you haveany criticismsor concerns?

A I didn’t really look at it thatclosely.

I didn’t readthe wholething, justkind of skimmed

through it.
Q So asyou sit heretodayyouhaveno

reasonto disbelieveanythingthatBlakeHarris
testifiedto, is thatcorrect?

A I haven’treadthrough it verycarefully,
so I don’t havean opinion on that.

Q You mentionedthatyou reviewedBlake
Harris’s recordreviews. I did notseethose,or
if I did I didn’t recognizethose,in the stackof

documentsthat’sbeenprovidedto mc today. Are

they here?
A Actually his -- it wasmorethesingular

than the plural. So it wasrecordreview,and
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therereally isn’t a whole lot to the review
itself. Thereisn’t a lot ofnarrativeto it. So
you probablysawit. You justdidn’t recognizeit.

Q Canyou show it to mepleaseout of the
documentsthat arein front of me here.

A So therewouldbetwo. One forthe
owner. Onefor the operator.

Q Okay. Now thosewere -- happento bea
coupleof thedocumentsthat I segregatedas onesI
wantedto talk to youabout, and I alsonotice a
coupleof documentsentitled statusof violations
worksheet.Whatarethose?

A Statusof violation worksheetis a
documentthatbasicallysummarizessomebody’s
reviewof a submittal. The submittaldateis put
at thetop, it’s called the dateof response,and
it showsthe datethat it was received,soyou
wouldhaveto go to the file to look for that
document.

MR. PORTER: All right. Chris, I’d like to
markthe recordreviews. How do youwantto handle
that?

MR. GRANT: Thoseare original, aren’tthey?
MR. PORTER: Yes.

Page14
MR. GRANT: we’ll makecopies.
MS. GRAYSON: Canyou fax to me -- maybemark

the onesthatyou’re goingto beusingandthenfax
themto me so I can havethem also?

MR. PORTER: You know, Clarissa,they’re
really abbreviated. I meanit’s goingto takeme
all of five minutesto go throughthem,but do you
want them faxedto you?

MS. GRAYSON: I guessafterwardsis fine.
MR. PORTER: okay.
MS. GRAYSON: well, it’s hardfor meto say

waituntil afterwardsbecauseI don’tknowwhat’s
evenin there.

MR. PORTER: Well, let me -- I’ll describe
them to you for therecordhere. First of all, can
wejustmark them on the back? Will thatwork?

MR. GRANT: Youknow, they’reIllinois EPA
files, andI don’tknow what their policies are.
I’d preferjustto makecopies.

MR. PORTER: Why don’t we makecopiesreal
quick --

ME. GRANT: Yeah.
MR.PORTER: --otherwisewecan’treferto

themin therecord.

(Whereupona short breakwas
taken.)

MR. PORTER: For therecord,wehavenow
markedas Exhibit 2 the recordreviewdoneby Blake
Harris on October31, 2000 concerningthe city of
Morris.

MR. GRANT: Do you havetwo ofthose? Are
they identical?

MR. PORTER: Yeah,she-- somehowwe endedup
with--

A You’ve got onefor an ownerandonefor
an operator,but you havetwo owners.

MR. PORTER: Yeah.
MR. GRANT: I don’t havecopiesof them,but

I’ve seenthem. You can go ahead.
MR. PORTER: Yeah,but whenI — let’s go off

the recordreal quick.
(Whereupona short breakwas
t.)

Q After someconfusionwe nowhavemarked
as Exhibit No. 2 the recordreviewfor the operator
andExhibit No. 3 therecordreview for theowner,
is that correct?

A Yes.

MS. GRAYSON: And what is Exhibit No. 1?
MR. PORTER: Exhibit 1 washis affidavit. Did

I not identify that?
MR. GRANT: I don’t think you did.
MR. PORTER: Okay. We will.
Q Attachedto Exhibit No.2 appearsto bea

memo. What is that?
A It’s alisting of the violationshe’s

alleging.
Q Andwas thatmemoeverforwardedto the

operator?
A No.
Q Okay. Wasit thensubsumedinto some

typeof noticeof violation?
A Yes, thosewere -- thoseviolations,

allegedviolationswerethenlisted in the
attachmenttoviolation notice.

Q And the violation specificallywas
811.700(0and21(d)(2), is that right?

A That is correct
Q Anditwasthesameforboththeowner

andthe operator,is that correct?
A Thatis correct.

24 Q Inpreparing--otherthanwhatwe’ve
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alreadytalkedabout,haveyoureviewedany oiler
documentsin preparationforyour depositiontoday?

A I just looked attheregulationsagain.
Q And in particular,was thereany

particular-- strikethat. Was thereany
particularregulationthat you reviewed?

A Notreally.
Q Well, I imagineyoureviewedSection811?
A 811.700for financial.
Q Okay. Did you review717?
A No.

Q
series

A

Q
A

funds.

Any particularsectionwithin the 700
thatyoureviewed?
712probablythe closest.
Andwhy 712?
Becausethathasto do with performance

Q All right. Let meshowyou whatwe’ve
hadmarkedas DepositionExhibit No. 1. Whatis
that?

A That’s my affidavit.
Q Is that a true andaccuratecopy of your

affidavit?
A Yes.

Q And for whatpurposewas thataffidavit
prepared,if youknow?

A I’m not exactlysureof the actual
purposeon thatone.

Q Did you draft the text, or did you have
the text draftedfor you andthenexecuted?

A Idraftedmostof the text.
Q Did you meetwith anyonein preparation

for your depositiontoday?
A Yes.
Q Whodidyou meetwith?
A I metwith Bruce Kugler andChrisGrant.
MR. PORTER: Arid, counsel,bepreparedfor

this.
Q Whatdid you discuss?
MR. GRANT: okay. I’m going to object.

GenerallyI’ll letyou answerand I’ll stop if we
startto getinto somethingthat I considerto be
privileged.

A We talkedaboutin generalwhat a
depositionis, what your role wouldbe, whatthe
courtreporter’srolewould be, andwhat Chris’s
role would be in this, andwhatmy role would be.

Q Did you talk aboutyourexpected

testimony?
A We talkedaboutthings that might be

asked.

9/20/2005
Page19

Q And what did you -- strike that. What
wassaidmightbe asked?

MR. GRANT: This is thepoint I think I’m
goingto objectandaskhim not to answer the
question.

MR. PORTER: And I guessthe reasonI moved
forwardwith the questioningis I wasnt sureif
you weregoing to assertthathe is indeedyour
client. Is thatyour --

MR. GRANT: Yeah,we’re going to claim
attorney/clientprivilegeon all communications,
whichfor this purposeincludesattorneygeneral’s
office, departmentof legal counselpersonnel,
anybodyon an enforcementdecisiongroupthat
includesanattorney,andMr. White.

And aslong asyou raisethat, there’s
oneotherthing that maycomeup. I want justto
let you know aheadof time. As you know we’ve
got -- we’ve madea claimunderthe Frontierbonds,
andit’s possiblygoing to be it will endup in
litigation. In anyevent,it’s a matteron which

Page20
we’re adversewith Frontier andalsoI think
adversewith boththe city andwith theCommunity
Landfill Companyon becauseofthepossibleimpact
of us making a claimon the Frontierbondsandany
litigation on.

So as far as discussingthe Frontier
bonds,it’s fair gamein thisuntil we get to the
point asto any actionsthatwe’re going to take in
the futureor decisionmakingsor ourbelief in --

or in the waywe’re reviewing legal strategyas far
astrying to collecton the Frontierbond. So just
in casethat comesup.

MR. PORTER: well, that doesbeg a coupleof
questions.

Q Haveyou madeany determinationor do you
haveanyopinion whetherornot anyclosureor
post-closureactivitieshavenotbeenperformedat
the site?

A Is that questiondirectedatme?
Q Uh-huh.
A That is for otherpeoplein the Bureauof

Landto determine,not to me.
Q Soyou haveno suchopinion, is that

correct?
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A I haveno opinion on that.
Q Has anyone from your department issued a

letter to FrontierInsuranceGroupassertingthat
any amountsneedto be paidbasedon abondheld
concerningthe CLC landfill?

MR. GRANT: okay. I’m not going to -- I’m not
going to object to that questionbecausewe’ve
copiedboth the city andthe CommunityLandfill
Companyon whenwe sentthatcommunicationto
FrontierInsuranceCompany,but I’m not waivingthe
right to claimprivilegeon thosequestions.

Q Do you need it read back?

A Yes.
MR. PORTER: if you would.

(Whereuponthereporterthen
readthe requestedtestimony.)

MR. GRANT: You cango aheadandanswer.
A Yes.

Q Okay. NowI’ve seen in the documents
that are atour tableherea June28, 2005 letter
to Frontier Insuranceinforming them that the
periodof the bondshouldbe automaticallyextended
for 12 months,but I am not seeinga letter, at
leastin thematerialsin front of mehere,making

a claim on anyfunds from thebond. Are you
certainthat sucha letterhasbeensent?

A Yes.

Q And do you know when it was sent?
ANO.

Q
just

A

Q
MR.

Page22

Is it in thematerial in front ofme,and
missedit?
I’m not sure.
Canyou takea quick look for meplease?

PORTER: off therecord.
(Whereuponan off-the-record
discussionwas held.).

Q Directing your attention now to the

affidavit, explainto me again
MR. GRANT: Do you want to identify this as

Exhibit I now?
MR. PORTER: Yeah.

Q -- whichis exhibit I. Explain to me
againwhata ComplianceUnit Managerdoes.

A ComplianceUnit Managerfor the Bureauof

Land, therole hasevolvedovertime. It started
out asmaking suretherequirementsfor USEPA’s
hazardouswasteprogram,the RCRAsubtitleC, that
thoseobligationswere filled for reporting.

Page23
1 The role expandedinto otherprogramsfor
2 theBureauof Land outsideof thehazardouswaste,
3 the LUST program,whichis leakingunderground
4 storagetanks,tiresprogram,and solid waste,
5 whichincludeslandfills andopen dumps. So
6 basicallytheunit itself tracksthecompliance

7 enforcementactivitiesup until thepoint of a
8 formal enforcementprocess.
9 And at onetime too all the violation

10 noticesandanyotherinfonnalenforcementnotices
ii all weresentout of theComplianceUnit. That
12 role hasnowbeendecentralizedandhasexpanded
13 into ourregionaloffices. And thenin 2002,under
14 the ComplianceUnit, the FinancialAssurance
15 Programalso movedundertheComplianceUnit at
16 thattime.
17 Q Okay. So at thetime thatthe records
18 reviews weredoneby Blake Harris thatwasnot part
19 of the ComplianceUnit Manager’sresponsibility?
20 A That is correct.

21 Q And in his depositionhe indicatedthat
22 therewerenevermorethantwo accountantsthat
23 were involved in reviewingfinancialassurancesin
24 the time thathe workedtherefrom -- which I

believewas ‘99 through2004. Do you haveany
reasonto disputethat testimony?

A No.
Q He indicatedthathis immediate

supervisorwas a Ms. HopeWright. Is that
informationcorrect?

A Yes.
Q You were notHopeWright’s supervisorat

thetime that this reportwasissuedon 10-31-00,
is that correct?

A Thatis correct.

Q Are you now the supervisor-- well,

strikethat. Whatis HopeWright’s title now, if
youknow?

A She is an EnvironmentalProtection
Specialistiv.

Q And is that thesameposition shehadat

thetime that the recordreviewwasdone?
A Yes.

Q And are you now her supervisor?
ANO.

Q Okay. Who is hersupervisor?

A Her supervisoris Dave Walters.

Q And wherewould he -- arethesepeople
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Page25 Page27
within your department,or aretheyin adifferent
department?

A They’re -- HopeandDave,Daveis the
sectionmanagerfor the Waste Reduction and
Compliance Section,which the ComplianceUnit is

partof.
Q Okay. So Dave would beyour boss?
A Yes.
Q Andso areyoukindofonthesametier

then as Hope, Ms. Wright?
A Hope is a bargaining unit member. I am

not.
Q Okay. Soshewouldbe--she’snot-- is

sheyour immediate supervisor?
A No.
Q Okay. But she is on a supervisory

position to peoplethat are at the samelevel as

you, is that correct?
A Could you repeat that please?
Q I’m not sureI could. Sheis not in your

department, is that right?
A She’sin my section. She’snot in my

unit.

Page26
time he draftedthisreport,wasnot in yourunit,
is thatcorrect?

A That is correct.
Q Andasamatteroffact, noneofthe

accountantsthat issuedtherecordsreviews
presentlyare in your unit, is that right, or is
thatnot right? I don’t know.

A Could you re-ask the question?
Q BlakeHarrissaidthathewasan

accountantat the time he issued thisreview in the

way that that’s definedby the EPA. Is that your
understanding as weil, that he was an accountant at
the time he issuedthis records review on 10-31-00?

A I’m not positive.
Q Okay. Who issuesthe recordsreviews

presently?
A The financial record reviewsare

conductedby the accountants in the Compliance
Unit.

Q And-- and I’m sorry, are you in charge

of the ComplianceUnit?
A Yes.
Q So now the accountantsare, that issue

the records review, are within your unit, is that

correct?
A Yes.
Q But at the time that theserecords

reviews weredone theywere not?
A That is correct.
Q And that changehappenedin 2002?
A Towards the end of 2002.
Q Do youknow why that -- why did that

changehappen?

A Like in everything elsein state
government, you can’t keep things static, so they
went througha reorganization.

Q Have you been involved in the training at
all of the individuals that now performrecords
review?

A I’m involved in someof the training,

yes.
Q And exactlywhat is your role in training

those people?
A My role is--at first was to setthe job

objectivesfor them, to describewhat needsto be

in a record reviewasfar aswhentheywrite it
up. So throughthe job objectives I was able to

define therole for them, and then I would review

Page28
the work that they did after theycompleteda
record review.

Q Is there anytraining coursethat’s
provided regarding implementationof the financial
assuranceregulations to the recordsreviewers?

A There wasacoursein 2004 offeredby the
USEPA. The coursegenerally focusedon RCRA
Subtitle C, which is hazardous waste. RCRA is
R-C-R-A. And the training coursewasput on by the
USEPA, andit was offered up in Chicago. It was a

four day, four and a half day course. And
basically a lot of the instruments usedin the
hazardouswasteprogram and the solid wasteprogram
were the same. There’scredits,bonds,insurance,
financial tests,trustfunds.

Q To yourknowledgehasthereeverbeena
courseor study concerningtheuseof municipal
guarantees?

A Not to my knowledge.
Q In--
MS. GRAYSON: I’m sony. Was that a no?
MR. PORTER: He saidnotto my knowledge.

Q In -- strike that. Do you everreview
the recordsreviews that aredone?
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A Yes.
Q And do you reviewthemall?
A No.
Q Which onesdo you review?
A Generallyanythingthat’s goingto result

in a violation notice and someof the reviews for
peoplethat arejust startingout.

Q And you’ve only beenreviewingtherecord
reviewssince2002, is that correct?

A Yes.
Q So you did not reviewBlakeHarris’s

recordreviewsconcerningthis landfill, is that
right?

A Not prior to him completing it.
Q Andeventuallythere was a noticeof

violation issuedconcerning theserecords reviews,
is that correct?

A Yes.
Q And do you know the date of that notice

of violation?

A It’s November --

Q Feelfreetolookatanythingyouneedto
look at to refresh your recollection.

A I wasn’t exactly sureof the date,but

1 November 14, 2000.
2 Q And again,you did not review that notice
3 of violation before its issuance,is that correct?
4 A That is correct.

5 Q So you had absolutely no input of whether
6 or not that noticeof violation should be issued,
7 is that correct?
8 A That is correct.
9 Q All right. Paragraph five of your

10 affidavit, Respondent’sExhibit No. 1, indicates

11 that you are familiarwith the landfill generally
12 knownas Morris CommunityLandfill. Is that

13 infonnation correct?
14 A Yes.
15 Q How haveyou becomefamiliar with the
16 Morris Community Landfill?
17 A I’ve beenfamiliarby looking at their
18 permits, by looking at the violation notice issued

19 by Blake, andI did an on-site visit.
20 Q Now whenyou looked at the permitsand
21 the violation notice, that was recently in regard

22 to preparation for your affidavit, is thatcorrect?
23 A Yes.
24 Q Had you doneit before you prepared your

Page31
affidavit?

A Yes.
Q Whenwas thefirst time thatyou hadever

becomefamiliarwith the Morris CommunityLandfill?
A I can’t recall.
Q What’syourbestrecollection?
A Probablysomewherebetween2002and2004.
Q You indicatedyou also did a site

review. When didthat happen?
A In May of this year.
Q Was thereanyreport issuedconcerning

that site review?
A ldon’tknow.
Q Who attendedthat with you?
A Mark Retzlafffrom ourfield office,

ChrisLiebmanfrom ourpermit section,Beverly
Andersonfrom the complianceunit, andmyself.

Q And at that time did you have any opinion

whetheranyclosureor post-closureactivity that
should’vebeenperformedwasnot beingperformed?

A That’s not for me to evaluate.
Q You haveno suchopinion, is that

correct?
A I haveno opinion on that.

Q And did anybody in that group have such
an opinion or verbalizesuchan opinion to you?

A No, they did not.
Q Didyou see anywaste being taken in at

that time?
A Atthetimelwasthereldidnotseeany

wastebeingtakenin.
Q Didyou seetheevidence of waste being

talcen in in the recentpast?
A It’s not an areaI’m really familiarwith

andstuff, so I m not comfortable answering that.
Q I guessthatkind of begsthequestion

of: Why did you go? I meanI understandyourjob
to be mainly recordsreview, is that correct,as
opposedto --

A Yes.
Q -- on-siteinspections?
A Yes.
Q And so what was the purpose of having you

there?
A Justbecomefamiliar with thesite,where

it was,whatit lookedlike.
Q Paragraph five also indicates that the

permittedownerof the landfill is thecity of
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Morris. Upon what do youbasethat?
A On thepermit.
Q And whichpermitareyou referringto?
A You can look at the Augustof2000. You

canlook at themodificationssincethenthrough
the Augustof 2002.

Q Your affidavit alsoprovidesthat the
permittedoperatoris CommunityLandfill Company,
alsoknownas cLc. upon whatdo you basethat?

A On thepermit.
Q So thepermits drawadistinctionbetween

theownerandoperator,is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Now the motion for summaryjudgment

that’s beenfiled in this case,haveyou reviewed
that?

A No.
Q Well, takemy word for it that that

documentsuggeststhat the landfill wasoperating
as recentlyas May of 2005. Do you knowif that
infonnationis correctornot?

A I don’t know if it’s corrector not.
Q Do you have anyinformationofwhether

CLC wasoperatingthe landfill asrecentlyasMay

of 2005?
A It’s not somethingI review.
Q At any timeto yourknowledgehasthe

city of Morris everbeenthepermittedoperatorof
the landfill?

A Not to my knowledge.
Q Do you haveany informationthat the city

of Mothshaseverphysicallyoperatedthe
landfill?

A It’s not somethingI review.
Q You mentionedin paragraphsix that you

reviewedthe illinois EPAfiles regardingthis
matterthatrelateto CLC. What Illinois EPA files
did you reviewotherthanwhatyou’ve already
described?

A I reviewedthe -- well, pretty muchwhat
I described. I reviewedthe bonds,I reviewed
the-- Blake’s review, I lookedat theviolation
notice, andI lookedattheresponsesto the
violation notice.

Q Anything else?
A Theremight’ve been,but nothingI can

recall at this time.
Q Okay. Thosedocumentsyou just described

are the documentsthatyouprimarily reliedupon in
order to cometo your conclusionsstatedin your
affidavit, is that correct?

A In part thoseare,yes.
Q Is thereanythingelsethatyou relied

upon to cometo theconclusionsyoucameto in your
affidavit?

A The permitsandtheregulations.
Q ParagraphsevenindicatesthatCLC and

the city wereissuedvariouspermits,including
closureandpost-closurecarepermits. Uponwhat
doyou basethat, areviewof the permits
themselves?

A Yes.
Q Andagain,atnotimeinthosepermitsis

the city of Moths identifiedas the operator,is
that correct?

A I don’t recall.
Q Doyouneedtolookatthepermitin

orderto refreshyour recollection?
A Sure.
Q And I think you probablyhaveit in front

ofyou here.
A InthepermitthecityofMorrisisnot

Page36
identifiedas theoperator.

Q Okay. In paragraphnumbernineyour
affidavit indicatesthatCLC andthe city were
requiredto havefinancial assurancefor its
significantmodifications. To your knowledgedid
the city everperformanysignificantmodifications
to the landfill?

A l’hereweresignificantmodifications,
which is a typeof permit.

Q But isn’t it true thatthosesignificant
modificationswereperformedby cLc ratherthanthe
city?

A That’sfor the permitreviewerto
determine.

Q You don’t havean opiniononewayor the
otheron that issue--

A No.
Q -- is thatcorrect?
A That’s correct.
Q Thatsameparagraphindicatesthat cLc

and the city wererequiredto havefinancial
assurance.Isn’t it truethat actuallyonly the
operatorneedpostfinancial assurance?

A No.
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1 Q Well, if an -- well, strikethat. In
2 your years,at leastsince2002,reviewingthese
3 financialassurancerecordreviewshaveyou had
4 occasionto seethat operatorsoften post financial
5 assuranceandthe ownersdo not?
6 A I don’t really recall. I haven’tthought
7 of it in thoseterms.
8 Q Well, you’re awarethat the regulations
9 providethat an operatoror anownermaypost

10 financial assurance,is that correct?
11 A Thatis correct.
12 Q Youwouldagreethenthatanownerof
13 land doesnot necessarilyhaveto post financial
14 assurance,isn’t that right?
15 A It’s the owneroroperator.
16 Q So theownerhimselfdoesnotnecessarily
17 havetopostfinancialassurance,is thatcorrect?
18 A The owneror operator.
19 Q Sowasmy statementcorrect?
20 A It’s the owneror operator. That’sthe
21 waythe regs read.
22 Q And so you would agreethat theowner
23 himselfdoesnot necessarilyhaveto post financial
24 assurance,right?

A It would bethe owneroroperator.
Q Is therea reasonyou can’t answerthat

with a yesor ano?
A I’m just restatingwhat the regssay.
Q Okay. If you can,pleaseanswerwith a

yes or a no. Isn’t it truethat the ownerdoesnot
necessarilyhaveto postfinancialassurance?

A Yes.
MS. GRAYSON: I’m sorry. I couldn’t hearyour

answer.
MR. GRANT: He answeredyes.
A It was in the affirmative.
Q Now paragraphtenprovidesthatCLC and

thecity providedfinancialassuranceby obtaining
performancebonds. Whatwasyourbasisof that
statement?

A A review ofthe bonds.
Q Andwhenyou saythattheyprovided

financialassurance,for therecord,what doesthat
mean?

A Theysubmittedbondsto theIllinois EPA
from Frontier.

Q Well, thetermsfinancialassuranceas
they’reusedin the realmof Illinois regulations

is a termof art, is that right?
A I’m notsurewhatyou’re asking.
Q Well, whenwe sayfinancialassurance,we

meanthat theypostedsometype of financial
mechanismthat complieswith thestatutesthatcan
guaranteeclosureor post-closureactivities,is
thatcorrect?

A Thatis correct,or correctiveaction.
Q So isn’t it true thenthat CLC did indeed

post somesort of vehicle to assureclosureor
post-closureactivities?

A Theyhavepostedfinancial assurance,
yes.

Q And to yourknowledgehastherebeenany
failure to perfonnany closureor post-closure
activity?

A That’s not up for meto decide.
Q So you’reunawareof any suchfailure, is

thatcorrect?
A I’m unaware,yes.
Q Areyou awarethat the largestcomponent

ofthe financialassurancerequirementis for
leaehatecollectionandmanagement?

A I haven’tevaluatedit thatclosely.

Q Are you awarethat the leachate
collection andmanagementhasactuallybeen
performed-- well, strikethat. Areyou awarethat
thecity hasacceptedtheleachatefrom the
facility?

A I’veheardthat.
Q And wheredid youhearthatfrom?
A From discussionson the sitewith -- that

wehadwith Mr. Heisten.
Q And isn’t it truethatthere area

varietyof mechanismsby which onemaypost
financialassurance?

A Yes.
Q Asamatteroffact,Ithinktheregs

calledfor ten differentvehicles,is that right?
A Yes.
Q Is oneof thosevehiclesactual

performance?
A No.
Q Is oneof thosevehiclesa municipal

guarantee?
AYe~
Q Are you awarethatthecity of Morrishas

offeredto provideamunicipal guarantee?
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A I’m awarethattheyhavetalkedaboutit.
Q And areyou awarethat the IEPA has

rejectedthat offer?
A I’m not awareof that.
Q If indeedthe citywereto providea

municipal guarantee,youwould agreethatthat
would meetthefinancial assurancerequirements,is
thatcorrect?

A If they provide a municipal guarantee
that complieswith the regulations,yes.

Q And Mr. Harris testifiedthata municipal
guarantee--

MR. GRANT: I’m goingto objectatthis
point. I don’t think, unlessyou havea deposition
transcriptor somethinglike thatto show, neither

he nor I know whatMr. Harris testifiedto.
MR. PORTER: well, I canfix thatproblem.
MR. GRANT: All right.
MR. PORTER: I think I havean extracopy

even.
Q Isn’t it true that the city of Morris

couldprovidea municipalguaranteewithout tieing
up the bondingauthority in your opinion?

A I would have to look atwhat theywould

1 submit and compareitto the regulations.They
2 have to comply with the regs. 817 requires -- or
3 717 requires that they also comply with the

4 financial tests in 716.
5 Q And do you know whether or not the city
6 of Morris complieswith the financial test?
7 A I have no idea.
8 Q Have you personally rejected the city of
9 Morris’s offer to provide a municipal guarantee?

10 A To the bestof my knowledge theyhaven’t
11 submittedanything for us to evaluate.

12 Q Now you would agreethat if indeed the
13 city of Moths had provided -- well, strike that.
14 At the present time the Frontier bonds had been
15 extended,is that correct?
16 A We have requestedthat the bonds be
17 extended,yes.
18 Q Well, andthe statute providesthat they

19 will beextendedautomatically,is thatright?
20 A Yes,ortheregsdo.
21 Q Sowould you agreethat it’s the IEPA’s
22 position that there is still financial assurance
23 for this landfill concerningclosure or
24 post-closurecare?

1 A There’s no financial assurancethat
2 complies with the regulations.
3 Q And upon what do you basethat opinion?

4 A On the fact that the Frontier bonds have
S beendelistedfrom the Treasury Circular 570.
6 Q Anything else?
7 A And the regulationsthemselves.
8 Q I’m sorry. I didn’t follow the last
9 part. What do you mean by and the regulations

10 themselves?
11 A Well, I mean it’s partof the regulations
12 andstaff thattheyneedto complyor thatthe
13 bonding company hasto be listed on the Treasury
14 Circular 570. It’s partof 712(b).
15 Q Well, actually doesn’t 712(b) provide
16 that if the suretycompanyis licensedto transact
17 businessby the departmentof insurancethat it
18 neednot be on that Circular570?
19 MR. GRANT: Canhe look at theregulations?
20 MR. PORTER: Absolutely.
21 A Idon’tneedto.
22 MR. GRANT: This is -- I mean I understand,
23 and I don’t want to interferewith your
24 exaimnation, but I mean thatwas settledthree

years ago.
MR. PORTER I understandyour position.

A There’s a three letterword in 712(b),
and it’s a conjunction. It’s and, A-N-D, andit
says and needsto be listed on the Treasury
Circular 570.

Q But doesn’t that conjunction relate to
the clauseimmediately before it, which is that it
only needsto be on the Circular 570 if it-- if
the insureris merely licensedto transact business

in a stateas opposedto being --

MR GRANT: I’m going to object again, and I’m

going to --

MR. PORTER: Let me finish the question.
MR. GRANT: All right.

Q -- as opposedto being approved by the
departmentof insurance?

MR. GRANT: I’m going to object again on the

basisthatthis hasbeensettledby the courts.
You cango aheadandanswerthe question.

A In my opinion no.
Q Upon what doyou basethat opinion?
A On reading the regulations.
Q Okay. So strictly the only thingyou’re
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basingit upon is a plain languagereadingof
811.712(b),correct?

A Yes.
Q And you would agreethatreasonableminds

can disagreeas to whetheror not thatclause
and-- or I’m sony, thatconjunctionandrelates
to the clauseimmediately in front of it or relates
to the entiresentence,correct?

MR. GRAFT: Objection again. You’re asking
him to makea legal conclusion about a statute.

MR. PORTER: well, I think he’s gonethere
becausehe’s provided an opinion that the financial
assurancesdon’t comply with that specificsection

of the statute.
MR. GRANT: I disagreewith your

characterizingthat asan opinion. It’s a
conclusion. There’sno reasonto relitigatea case
that was triedbefore the boardandappealed.
There’sno questionaboutthatparagraph.It’s
beendone. His opinionon it doesn’treally add
anythingto it.

MR. PORTER: I understandyour objection.
MR. GRANT: obviouslyhe disagreeswith you.
MR. PORTER: I don’t know if I got an answer

or not.
MR. GRAFT: All right.
MR. PORTER: could youreadit backplease

becauseI don’t recall if he answeredornot or
justtell me if he answered.

(Whereuponthereporterthen
readthe requestedtestimony.)

Q Unlessyourattorneydirectsyou not to
answer—-

MR. GRANT: You cango aheadandanswer. You
canrespondto thequestion.

Q Doyouwanthertoreaditonemoretime?
A Yeah, please.

(Whereuponthe reporterthen
readthe requestedtestimony.)

A I guesspeoplecanalwaysdisagreewith
things. Whetherornot I agreeit’s reasonableor
not is awhole different thing.

Q Has Frontierfailed to honor its bondsto
yourknowledge?

A Tomy knowledgeno.

Q And your lastandfinal paragraphis that
CLC andthe city do not currentlyhaveany
financial assurancein placefor thelandfill.

9/20/2005

Page47
Uponwhat do youbasethatconsideringthefact
that the city hasofferedto provideaguarantee
and in the IEPA’s opinionthebondshavebeen
extendedautomatically?

A Basically once the bonds got delisted--

Frontiergot delisted,that the bonds did not
satisfy the requirementsor theregulationsas
adequatefinancial assurance. The city was

supposedto provide back in 2000 within 90 days
substitute alternate financial assurance. Five
yearslaterwestill don’t havethat, nothingin
writing, no documents,no information.

Q Well, you said the city was to provide
that, but isn’t it trueagainthat the city is not
thepermittedoperator?

A That is correct.
MR. PORTER: I don’t have anything further.
MR. GRAFT: clarissa,how areyou doing?
MS. GRAYSON: Sure.
MR. GRANT: I thoughtyou’d walkedout. That

wasjust a test. Now do you havesomequestions?
Do you want to takeaquickbreakandaskacouple
of questions?Whatdo you want to do?

MS. GRAYSON: A coupleof minutebreakif you

Page48
don’t mind.

MR. GRANT: No, I don’t becauseactuallyI’d
like to go get somemorewater.

MS. GRAYSON: Just let me knowwhenyou guys
areback.

MR. GRANT: Okay.
(Whereuponashortbreakwas
t.)

EXAMINATION CONDUCTED
BY MS. GRAYSON:

Q My name is Clarissa Grayson, and I’m the
attorneyfor Community Landfill Companyor one of
the attorneys.

A Okay.
Q Ihaveafewquestions.Ihadahard

timehearingsomeof the testimony,but I think I
got mostof it. I want to go back to the questions
that Mr. Porterwas askingyou regardingparagraph
nine of your affidavit.

A Okay.
Q You cited the actualregulationsthat you

were discussingor that he askedyou about

regarding the owneror operatorrequirementsfor
posting financial assurance. Could you tell me
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1, TAI,IARA C, LEESMAN, CertifiedShorthand
ReporterandNotary Public oftheStateof
Illinois, do herebycertify thatBRIMi WfflTh came
beforemeon the20thday of September,2005,and
sworebeforemeto testify to the truth, thewhole
truth,and nothingbutthetruth regardingIris
knowledgetouchinguponthematterin controversy.

I do further certify thatF did take
stenographicnotesof the questionspropoundedto
said witnessandhis aneweratheretoandthat said
noteswere reducedto typewrittenform undermy
directionandsupervision.

I do further certify thatsaid deposition
wastakenat theIllinois EnvironmentalProtection
Agencyheadquarters,1340North Ninth Street.
Springfield, fllinois.

do further certify that!amnot
13 relatedin any way to any of the pastiesinvolved

in thisaction andhave is, interestin the outcome
14 thereof.

Datedat Springfield, Illinois this 23rd
day of September, 2005,andgiven undermy handand
seal.
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doesn’tpostfinancial assurance,thentheowner is
requiredto, is that correct?

A It meansone or the othershallprovide
it.

Q So neitheris requiredto post it, it’s
either one or theother?

A Either one or the other?
Q Yeah,eitheroneor theother.
A Yeah, eitheroneor theothercanprovide

it, or theybothcanprovideit.
MS. GRAYSON: okay. I think that’s all I

have.
MR. PORTER: I haveno follow-ups.
MR. GRANT: I’m done.
MR. PORTER: I am going to makeacopyof some

of the or I havea copy of thesedocuments.I only
markedtwo ofthemasan exhibit, Clarissa.

MS. GRAYSON: Okay.

MR. PORTER: Soif you want a copy, I cancopy
whatI’m takingandI’ll sendthem overto you.
All right?

MS. GRAYSON: okay.
MR. PORTER: Great. Thankyou.

(DEPOSITIONCONCLUDED)
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which sectionof the regulationsyouwere talking
about?

MR. GRANT: Do you mind if wereferto the
reguiations?Wedon’t haveit as an exhibit,but
we’ve got a book of themright here.

MS. GRAYSON: Sure. I havea book also.
MR. GRANT: okay.
A Yeah,basicallyyou can look at 811.700.

It talksabouttheowneror operator. You canlook
at811.701. The owneror operatorshallmaintain
financialassuranceequalto or greaterthanthe
currentcostestimatecalculatedpursuantto
Section811.704at all times. And it’s basically
throughoutall of Subpart0, financial assurance.

Q Okay. Sowhenit saysowner or
operator--

A Yes.
Q -- thatmeansthat neither-- I mean

doesn’tthatmeanthat neither-- thatthe operator
also isn’t requiredto post it or theowner?

A Couldyou repeatthatquestionplease?
Q Meaningthe termowneror operatormean

either one of themshallmaintainfinancial
assurance.So in otherwords,if the operator
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